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In 2013, the Group's turnover decreased by 7.5% to
approximately HK$4,548 million while gross profit increased
53% to approximately HK$146 million, compared to the same
period last year. The Group recorded a loss attributable to
shareholders of approximately HK$3.67 million.

Steel Trading

Compared to last year, the steel industry market conditions
improved slightly in 2013. However, growth rate on the
productivity far exceeded the demand. Compared to the same
period last year, crude steel production in Europe, America,
the Commonwealth of Independent States fell, while crude
steel production rose in Asia, Africa, the Middle East by
approximately 6%, making global crude steel production rise
up 3.5%, in which China’s crude steel production reached the
highest of 7.5%, accounting for 48.5% of the global. In the
meantime, demand growth slowed down rapidly, imbalance
between supply and demand sustained, and import/export
spread turned upside down. Steel prices began to fall in the
first quarter and then continued declining unsteadily. Loss-
making enterprises increased and the industry remained
sluggish.

Market trend of iron ore was similar to steel’s. Bleak steel
market undoubtedly weakened demand. From early 2013 to
June 2013, iron ore prices dropped more than 25%. Even
though the situation was slightly improved in the third quarter,
the huge stock of backlog iron ore imports, at the end of
the year, reached over 100 million tons suppressed prices to
rebound.

During the period under review, in response to market
conditions, the Group had shifted its market focus from
American-European Market to Asian Market where its
economy was slightly better, strived to adjust its product
structure, and strengthened operation of its export business
on varieties of constructional steel for large infrastructure
projects. Signing of interim and long terms’ sale and purchase
agreements during the period stabilized trading volumes
in such weakened market environment. In respect of iron
ore imports trading, a cautious conservative strategy (not
aggressive, no inventory) was adopted to mitigate market risk.
In respect of exploration of other mineral resources, offshore
quality control before shipment was strengthened to ensure its
quality and meet the long-term stable demand from importers.
Meanwhile, with strong demand for low interest rate loans
from foreign banks for PRC steel mills, the Group has actively
coordinated with certain foreign and Hong Kong banks to
facilitate advance payment financing for such mills. A stable
supply of export products with lower prices from such mills
would then be obtained. With a continuous effort, the Group's
steel and mineral resources trading overall achieved better
performance as compared to last year.
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Steel Processing

In 2013, continuously driven by weak demand in American-
European Market and economic slowdown in China, traditional
product processing plants in the Pearl River Delta region were
difficult to survive and suffering loss or on the verge of facing
loss, even though efforts were made to improve operation and
management on the business.

Owing to decrease in sales order, the Group’s steel processing
plant had no fundamental improvement in production volume
and sales. With reduced inventory and severe control over costs
and expenses, gross profit per ton increased but it still recorded
loss.

Commercial Property Investment and Master Leasing
Operation

The Group’s integrated shopping mall in Yangzhou, Jiangsu
Province, PRC continues operating steadily. Rental income for
the year 2013 increased by 20% when compared to the same
period in prior year.

Our long-term retail property master leasing projects cover
various cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen, Nanjing,
Dalian and Wuxi, etc. with total contracted leasing area of
about 380,000 square meters, operating retail area over
150,000 square meters and an additional area of around
120,000 square meters scheduled to be under operation this
year. Among these projects, the Shanghai Nanjing Road East
project, primly located on a famous local pedestrian walking
street, has engaged tenants from renowned international
brands and making itself a landmark project. The Wuxi Ancient
Canal Walk project, featuring as part of the antiqued buildings,
has created a stylish shopping atmosphere, winning not only
reputation from customers and tourists but gaining also
growth in operating income steadily. Both Nanjing Fuzimiao
project and Shenzhen Futian project are located right next to
the entrances of the underground stations and in the heart of
the populated downtown consumer areas, offering promising
development prospects.
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Looking forward to 2014, a stable world economy is
anticipated. Different industries may face different kinds of
big difficulties between its business environment, amongst
steel and related industries will remain challenging and full of
uncertainties.

US economy is continuously recovering in which steel
mills” productivity is compressed, imports are suppressed,
downstream boosts demand, and steel prices are eventually
supported. Europe’s economy had hit bottom as automotive,
building, manufacturing and other industries had achieved
a positive growth rate over several months. Specific steel
product prices rebound and the market confidence begins to
be restored. Steady growth has been built up in major Asian
economies that steel productivity maintains growth, demand
from downstream remains stable and market endurance
remains strong. In China, the new government has adjusted
the economic development model by lower the probability
to launch new economic stimulus policies. Over-reliance on
investment and extensive development with high energy
consumption will gradually be changed, and the economy is
forced to fall shortly. Having weak demand in the steel industry
and no fluctuation for imports and exports, steel prices will
remain at a low level. During the first two months, China’s
Steel Purchasing Managers Index continued to fall, down to
the lowest since September 2012. From early 2014 to early
March, iron ore import prices have cumulatively dropped more
than 15%. It's in a severe business environment for steel mills
in the interim. With domestic demand weak, the China’s steel
industry will be more active to expand its export business.
When there is an upturn in the economy of the demanding
countries and regions, major supplying countries seeking ways
out abroad may bring more opportunities for trade business.

In this coming year, in order to achieve better results, the
Group would operate cautiously and control risks, striving hard
for its core business to boost operating revenue.
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There had been no significant change in the financial position
of the Group for the year. The Group’s gearing ratio, as a ratio
of total borrowings net of total cash and cash equivalents to
total equity, and current ratio, as a ratio of current assets to
current liabilities, were kept at 0.42 (2012: 0.46) and 1.46
(2012: 1.44) respectively at 31 December 2013.

In April 2013, the Company allotted and issued 397,052,000
new ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.122 each for cash
amounted to approximately HK$48 million as general working
capital.

In October 2013, a subscription agreement was entered
into for subscription of 825,600,000 new ordinary shares
of the Company by a third party within six months from 22
October 2013 at a price of HK$0.26 each for cash amounted
to approximately HK$215 million for general working capital
purposes. Following the completion of this share subscription,
the Group’s liquidity will be further enhanced.

The total borrowings of the Group decreased to approximately
HK$919 million (2012: HK$1,001 million) as at 31 December
2013 and their maturity profile as agreed with the lenders was
as follows:

Within one year —FA
Between one and two years —E2-FNR
Between two and five years —EZRFR
Over five years iR

The Group’s borrowings were denominated in US Dollar, Euro,
Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar, and were charged interest at
prevailing market rates.

The Group’s receipts, payments, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in US Dollar, Euro, Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollar. The Group considers that its exposure to
exchange rate risk is modest except for Euro in which less than
10% of the Group's receipts and payments were denominated
for 2013. To minimise the exchange rate risk, forward
exchange contracts are used when required, in particular for
Euro.
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As at 31 December 2013, the Group had the following RZZE—=F+-A=+—H ' KEBEHFL
outstanding corporate guarantees: TARMEEE D FIHER
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
Guarantees for general banking facilities %Hﬁ%%@ﬂﬁiﬁ%ﬁlé‘&
and loan facilities granted to associates EXRmEEL ZER 11,160 22,420
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage Z%,EI%%E%\%&TEE%(
facilities granted to the buyers of i mERITVEH 2 R
the Group's properties 97 94
11,257 22,514

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had contingent liabilities
relating to Mainland China land appreciation tax amounted to
approximately HK$31,747,000 (2012: HK$30,800,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no capital
commitments contracted but not provided(2012:
HK$12,802,000) in respect of property, plant and equipment.

As at 31 December 2013, the following assets were pledged:
(i) certain leasehold land, land use rights and buildings with
a net book amount of approximately HK$91,619,000 (2012:
HK$94,725,000); (ii) certain motor vehicles with a net book
amount of approximately HK$679,000 (2012: HK$1,681,000);
(iii) certain investment properties of approximately
HK$985,086,000 (2012: HK$879,310,000); (iv) certain
short-term bank deposits of approximately HK$22,657,000
(2012: HK$24,665,000); and (v) interest of shares in certain
subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed 476 staff.
Staff remuneration packages are structured and reviewed
by reference to market terms and individual merits. The
Group also provides other staff benefits which include year
end double pay, contributory provident fund and medical
insurance. Share options and discretionary bonus may also be
granted to eligible staff based on individual and the Group
performances. Training programmes for staff are provided as
and when required.
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Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. CHAN joined the Group as Chairman and Managing
Director in 1998. Mr. CHAN has over 20 years of experience
in international trading of metal, the processing and
manufacturing of related products, the management
of industrial enterprises, the investment in industrial
and commercial properties, and corporate planning and
management. Ms. LAU Ting is the spouse of Mr. CHAN.

Executive Director and Deputy General Manager

Mr. SIT joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 2000. He was promoted to Deputy
General Manager in 2006. Mr. SIT is also a Director of Burwill
Resources Limited in-charge of contracts and import/export
bills operation for metal trading. He graduated from the
Finance Department of Jinan University in Guangzhou. He had
worked for banking sector and metal trading companies and
has over 20 years of experience in international metal trading
and import/export bills operation.

Executive Director

Mr. YANG joined the Group in March 2001 and is an Executive
Director. Mr. YANG is a Senior Economist of the PRC. In mid-
1980’s, he was employed as the Head of Changzhou Tractor
Company, Jiangsu Province; the Chairman of Changzhou City
Labour Union and the Head of Liyang City, Jiangsu Province.
In mid-1990’s, he was elected as Routing Deputy Mayor of
Changzhou City Government, Jiangsu Province. He is currently
the Chairman of the Jiangsu Overseas Group Corp. and the
Chairman and President of Zhong Shan Company Limited,
the window company of the Jiangsu Province in Hong Kong.
He has got over 20 years of experience in corporate planning
and management, international trade, corporate finance and
project investment, international economic and technology
cooperation.

Executive Director

Ms. LAU joined the Group as an Executive Director in 1998. Ms.
LAU has over 20 years of experience in business development
and strategic planning, project investment and financial
management. She is the spouse of Mr. CHAN Shing. Ms. LAU
is also the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of China
LotSynergy Holdings Limited.
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Executive Director

Ms. TUNG joined the Group in 1988 and is an Executive
Director. Ms. TUNG is currently in-charge of the Investment
Division. She holds a bachelor's degree in Management
Sciences from the University of Manchester, United Kingdom.

Executive Director

Mr. KWOK joined the Group in 1994 and is an Executive
Director. He is also the Company Secretary and the Group’s
Financial Controller. Mr. KWOK has over 20 years’ experience
in the areas of auditing, finance and accounting. He is a Fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Executive Director

Mr. SHAM joined the Group in 2000 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in July 2009. He is the Managing Director
of Burwill Resources Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, in-
charge of the Group’s steel and mineral trading business. Mr.
SHAM graduated from The University of Hong Kong and, prior
to joining the Group, had worked for a multinational steel
trading company for 7 years. He has over 19 years extensive
experience in steel trading and gains good international
connections.

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CUI joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in 1998. Mr. CUI graduated from People’s University of
China. He was the Deputy Head of the Bank of China, Jiangsu
branch, the Executive Director of The National Commercial
Bank, Ltd. and the General Manager of its Hong Kong branch,
a Director and the Executive Vice President of The Ka Wah
Bank Ltd.. Mr. CUI is currently an Independent Non-Executive
Director of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited and Yue Da
Mining Holdings Limited, both are listed companies in Hong
Kong. He has over 40 years of experience in international
finance and corporate planning and management.
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Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. HUANG joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in September 2004. Mr. HUANG was an executive
director and the deputy governor of China Everbright Bank,
Head Office, an executive director and the general manager
of China Everbright Technology Limited and an independent
non-executive director of Chongging Road & Bridge Co. Ltd.
and Symphony Holdings Limited. Mr. HUANG holds a diploma
in Arts from Huazhong Normal University and in International
Economics from Huadong Normal University and a certificate
in International Economic Law from Xiamen University and in
Advanced Management Programme from the Business School
of Harvard University, USA. Mr. HUANG is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited
and a Non-Executive Director of China Fortune Investments
(Holding) Limited.

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CHAN joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in October 2011. He is currently the Chief Executive
Officer of City Green Holdings Limited primarily responsible
for the formulation and execution of the group’s strategy.
Prior to that, Mr. CHAN was the Chief Executive Officer of Full
Seas Technology Group and the President of Dandelion Capital
Group, which is a private financial advisory company. He has
over twenty years of experience in investment banking and
asset management. Mr. CHAN had worked for Jardine Fleming
Investment Management with a major responsibility to market
unit trusts and asset management products in Hong Kong and
subsequently in various Asian markets, and was particularly
instrumental in the establishment of Jardine Fleming's
investment trust operation in Japan, Korea and Indonesia. Mr.
CHAN also cofounded the KGI Group, which is a pan-Asian
investment bank with shareholders including major investors
and institutions in Asia, where he was the head of the asset
management operation which managed about USD400 million
in hedge funds and other portfolios, and was also a member of
the management committee of KGI Group. Mr. CHAN received
a bachelor’s degree in Social Sciences with major in Economics
from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. CHAN is currently
an Independent Non-Executive Director of China LotSynergy
Holdings Limited.

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CHIANG joined the Group as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in December 2012. He holds a Bachelor
degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong
and a LL.B. from Peking University. Mr. CHIANG is also a
Chartered Financial Analyst charter holder. Mr. CHIANG has
held senior roles in various international banks and financial
institutions, primarily responsible for structured debt and/or
equity financing. Mr. CHIANG has extensive experience in the
banking and finance industry. Mr. CHIANG is currently an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Sunlink International
Holdings Limited.
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Report of Directors EEF &

The board of Directors of Burwill Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) presents to the shareholders their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 43.

The respective state of affairs of the Group and the Company
as at 31 December 2013 are set out in the balance sheets on
pages 41 and 42.

The Group's cash flows are set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on pages 47 and 48.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the Group are steel trading, steel
processing, mineral resources exploration and development
and commercial property investment.

The Group's segment results for the year and other segment

information are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No interim dividend was paid during the year.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).
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Report of Directors EEF &

The percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers are as follows:

%
— the largest supplier 8
— five largest suppliers combined 32

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s major
customers are as follows:

%
— the largest customer 9
— five largest customers combined 31

None of the Directors, their respective associates nor
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in the above suppliers or customers at any time during the year.

The movements in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties during the year are set out in notes 7 and
8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The particulars of properties held by the Group for investment
as at 31 December 2013 are set out on page 163.

The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and
associates as at 31 December 2013 are set out in notes 10 and
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

The particulars of the Group’s bank loans are set out in note 23
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s bank loans were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar, US Dollar, Renminbi and Euro. As at 31 December 2013,
around 72% of the Group’s bank loans were denominated
in Hong Kong Dollar and US Dollar. All the bank loans bear
interest at prevailing market rates.
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Report of Directors EEF &

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of movements in reserves during the year are set out in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders calculated in accordance
with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda amounted to
HK$275,164,000 (2012: HK$836,751,000).

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there is no statutory restriction
against the granting of such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

The share option schemes were adopted by the Company on 6
June 2002 (“2002 Option Scheme”) and 8 June 2011 (“2011
Option Scheme”) respectively, certain options were granted to
subscribe for new ordinary shares of the Company under 2002
Option Scheme, and such options were expired and lapsed on
6 October 2013. Details of which are set out as follows:

(A) 2002 Option Scheme
() Summary of terms of 2002 Option Scheme
(i)  Purpose of 2002 Option Scheme

The purpose of 2002 Option Scheme was to
provide incentives to Participants (as stated in
paragraph (ii)) to contribute to the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract resources that are
valuable to the Group.
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(A)

2002 Option Scheme (continued)

()

Summary of terms of 2002 Option Scheme
(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Participants

Any person being an employee, officer,
buying agent, selling agent, consultant, sales
representative or marketing representative of,
or supplier or provider of goods or services to,
the Group, including any executive or non-
executive director of the Group.

Maximum number of shares

The limit on the total number of shares
which might be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under 2002 Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of any member of
the Group must not exceed 30 per cent. of the
number of issued shares from time to time.
There are no option shares available for issue
under 2002 Option Scheme upon its terms of
expiry on 6 June 2012.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting, no Participant would be granted
an option which would result in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such Participant in any
12-month period up to and including the
proposed date of grant for such options would
exceed 1 per cent. of the number of shares in
issue as at the proposed date of grant.

Option period

An option might be exercised in accordance
with the terms of 2002 Option Scheme at any
time during a period of not exceeding 10 years
to be notified by the Board to the grantee,
such period to commence on the date of
grant or such later date as the Board might
determine and expiring on the last day of
the said period. Under 2002 Option Scheme,
the Board might, at its discretion, prescribe a
minimum period for which an option must be
held before it could be exercised.

(A)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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(A)

2002 Option Scheme (continued)

()

Summary of terms of 2002 Option Scheme
(continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Payment on acceptance of option

HK$1.00 in cash was payable by the
Participant who accepted the grant of an
option in accordance with the terms of 2002
Option Scheme on acceptance of the grant of
an option.

Subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under
the options to be granted under 2002 Option
Scheme would be a price determined by the
Board and notified to a Participant at the
time the grant of the options was made to
(and subject to acceptance by) the Participant
and would be at least the highest of: (a)
the closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the date of the grant (subject
to acceptance) of the option, which must be a
business day; (b) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of the
grant (subject to acceptance) of the option;
and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

The life of 2002 Option Scheme

2002 Option Scheme was valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on 6
June 2002, after which period no further
options would be granted nor accepted
but the provisions of 2002 Option Scheme
remained in full force and effect in all other
respects.

(A)
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(viii)
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(A) 2002 Option Scheme (continued) (A) =ZEZ_FERETEI(E)
() Movements of share options under 2002 Option () Z—EFEZ_JEARIEfZIE 2B E
Scheme: R (R -
Exercise period Number of share options
Cgd BRERGHA
Exercise outstanding granted exercised cancelled lapsed outstanding
Date of price asat  during  during  during during as at
grant per share from until 01/01/2013 the year the year theyear  the year 31/12/2013
R R®
BR 01/01/2013 31/12/2013
RHEH %E M E BHATRE FARM FATE FAE#E  FAXYN BEHATR
HK$
(i) Directors
Bz
CHAN Shing 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010  05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - (1,540,000) -
B4 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - (1,540,000) -
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 1,320,000 - - - (1,320,000) -
SIT Hoi Tung 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010  05/10/2013 1,540,000 = = - (1,540,000) -
BIR 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - (1,540,000) -
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 1,320,000 - - - (1,320,000) -
YANG Dawei 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010  05/10/2013 630,000 = = - (630,000) -
PN 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 630,000 - - - (630,000) -
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 540,000 = = - (540,000) -
LAU Ting 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010  05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - (1,540,000) -
2z 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - (1,540,000) -
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 1,320,000 - - - (1,320,000) -
TUNG Pui Shan, ~ 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010  05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - (1,540,000) -
Virginia 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - (1,540,000) -
=i 06/10/2012  05/10/2013 1,320,000 - - - (1,320,000) -
KWOK Wai Lam  06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010  05/10/2013 1,540,000 - = - (1,540,000) =
PER 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - (1,540,000) -
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 1,320,000 = = - (1,320,000) =
YIN Mark (Note) ~ 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010  05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - (1,540,000) -
FU(H5F) 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - (1,540,000) -
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 1,320,000 - - - (1,320,000) -
SHAM Kai Man 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010  05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - (1,540,000) -
EHX 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - (1,540,000) -
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 1,320,000 - - - (1,320,000) -
CUI Shu Ming 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010  05/10/2013 630,000 - - - (630,000) -
EEH 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 630,000 = = = (630,000) =
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 540,000 = = - (540,000) -
HUANG Shenglan  06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010  05/10/2013 630,000 - - - (630,000) -
HBE 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 630,000 = = - (630,000) -
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 540,000 - - - (540,000) -
(i) Continuous 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010  05/10/2013 15,400,000 - - - (15,400,000) -
contract 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 15,400,000 - - - (15,400,000) -
employees 06/10/2012  05/10/2013 13,200,000 - - - (13,200,000) -
EEANES
Total:
e 80,200,000 = = - (80,200,000) -
Note: Mr. YIN Mark resigned as a Director of the Company on 12 et - FUGEER-_T—NFE=A+-=—HE

March 2014. AARRBESE -
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(B)

2011 Option Scheme

()

Summary of terms of 2011 Option Scheme

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Purpose of 2011 Option Scheme

The purpose of 2011 Option Scheme
is to provide incentives or rewards to
Participants (as stated in paragraph (ii)) for
the contribution to the Group and to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and other personnel that are
valuable to the Group.

Participants

Any individual being an employee (whether
full-time or part-time), officer, buying agent,
selling agent, consultant, sales representative
or marketing representative of, or supplier
or provider of goods or services to, the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, including
any executive or non-executive director of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, who
satisfies the criteria set out in 2011 Option
Scheme.

Maximum number of shares

The limit on the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under 2011 Option Scheme,
together with all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under any other share
option schemes of the Company and/or any
subsidiary must not exceed 30 per cent. of
the number of issued shares from time to
time. The total number of shares available
for issue under 2011 Option Scheme as at
the date of this report is 487,535,968 shares,
representing approximately 10.63 per cent. of
the issued share capital of the Company as of
that date.
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(B) 2011 Option Scheme (continued)

() Summary of terms of 2011 Option Scheme
(continued)

(iv)

(vi)

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting, no Participant shall be granted
an option which would result in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such Participant
in any 12-month period immediately
preceding the proposed date of grant for
such options would exceed 1 per cent. of the
number of shares in issue as at the proposed
date of grant.

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of 2011 Option Scheme at any
time during a period of not exceeding 10 years
to be notified by the Board to the grantee,
such period to commence on the date of grant
or such later date as the Board may determine
and expiring on the last day of the said period.
Under 2011 Option Scheme, the Board may,
at its discretion, prescribe a minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised.

Payment on acceptance of option

HK$1.00 in cash is payable by the Participant
who accepts the grant of an option in
accordance with the terms of 2011 Option
Scheme on acceptance of the grant of an
option.
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(B)

2011 Option Scheme (continued)

()

(1

Summary of terms of 2011 Option Scheme
(continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under
the options to be granted under 2011 Option
Scheme will be a price determined by the
Board and notified to a Participant at the
time the grant of the options is made to (and
subject to acceptance by) the Participant and
will be at least the highest of: (a) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on
the date of the grant (subject to acceptance)
of the option, which must be a business day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant (subject to
acceptance) of the option; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares.

The life of 2011 Option Scheme

2011 Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing
from 8 June 2011, after which period no
further options will be granted nor accepted
but the provisions of 2011 Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects.

No options had been granted, exercised, cancelled
nor lapsed under 2011 Option Scheme since its
adoption on 8 June 2011.
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The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Shing

Mr. SIT Hoi Tung

Mr. YANG Dawei

Ms. LAU Ting

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. YIN Mark (resigned on 12 March 2014)
Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CUI Shu Ming
Mr. HUANG Shenglan
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai
Mr. CHIANG Bun

In accordance with bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Messrs. KWOK Wai Lam, CUI Shu Ming and CHAN
Ming Fai shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out
on pages 9 to 11.
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As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company (including
those interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have interests and short positions under the
provisions of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

R-ZE—=F+-"A=+—H  REAAQF
RREFSMAEGO([EFHRBAEGKR])E
352{EFTREB T HEFRELMATE - sk
BETARESHETESFRSNIZESTEIE
MARBRERAT  ARRSESE RITEE
HRARRR S EFMEEEE(EEREFHR
B EIEBISEXVER) B (D ~ BRI, RESHEH
HA SRR ES M E GRS AR E
mERARE BT

RRB R R ABEE R0 S

Number of ordinary shares & underlying shares

ERRROREERDHE
Approximate
percentage in
the Company’s
Personal Family Corporate issued share
Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Total capital
HIEAAT
ERTRAK
BEx=pgs fBA R Rz NGIL: £ my Bt
CHAN Shing 111,074,521 (L) 104,042,601 (L)  1,729,266,037 (L)  1,944,383,159 (L) 42.39% (L)
R 5k (Note 1)  1,406,427,301 (S)  1,406,427,301 (S) 30.66% (S)
(Hiat1) (Notes 2 & 3) (Note 3)
(MfiF2k%3) (H15t3)
SIT Hoi Tung 4,413,869 (L) — — 4,413,869 (L) 0.10% (L)
REBR
LAU Ting 104,042,601 (L) 111,074,521 (L)  1,729,266,037 (L)  1,944,383,159 (L) 42.39% (L)
2z (Note 4)  1,406,427,301 (S)  1,406,427,301 (S) 30.66% (S)
(Hiit4) (Notes 2 & 3) (Note 3)
(MfiF2k%3) (H15t3)
TUNG Pui Shan, 21,725,226 (L) 110,000 (L) 7,104,000 (L) 28,939,226 (L) 0.63% (L)
Virginia (Note 5)
=1 (Hi7t5)
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Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1. These interests were held by Ms. LAU Ting, the spouse of Mr. CHAN
Shing.

2. 1,290,961,336 shares were held by Glory Add Limited (“Glory Add"”),

a wholly-owned subsidiary of Favor King Limited (a company which is
wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting). 226,403,853 shares
were held by Hang Sing Overseas Limited (“Hang Sing”) which is owned
as to 51% by Orient Strength Limited (”Orient Strength”), a company
which is wholly-owned by Ms. LAU Ting. 211,900,848 shares were held
by Strong Purpose Corporation, a company which is wholly-owned by Mr.
CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting.

3. As the interests of each of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting are deemed
to be the interests of each other, the figures referred to the same shares.

4. These interests were held by Mr. CHAN Shing, the spouse of Ms. LAU
Ting.

5. 7,104,000 shares were owned by Focus Cheer Consultants Limited, a
company which is wholly-owned by Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia.

6. The letter “L"” denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes short
position.

Save as otherwise disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013,
none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had,
or were deemed under the SFO to have, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

RARRG RAAERDER (&)

Bt

1. WEREGHIERLER - LT ARMEEZ
T8 -

2. 1,290,961, 336 RHBRM EER BB L L2 E B
A KyFavor King Limitedi® B H 2 & i & 2 7] Glory
Add Limited ([ Glory Add ) #5748 ° 226,403,853 %
i Hang Sing Overseas Limited ([ Hang Sing | ) #
A + Orient Strength Limited ([ Orient Strength )
B Hang Sing 51%# %= ' MEBELZTAEZEHE
Orient Strength ° 211,900,848/% H# Strong Purpose
Corporation$$48 ' R ERBEL T2 EHS

Strong Purpose Corporation ©

3. F R BRI 5 A e B8 2 o 2 4 28 AR AR 1R ok RO
0 AP TFIRRR AR -

4. SR EmRAEERER - RREERBEL LY
[

5. 7,104,000 B E M 2 + 2 & # B 2 A AlFocus
Cheer Consultants Limited#75& ©

6. [LIRRITA  [SIRTKE -

BREXFIEBZEEN R —=F+_A4
=+—H ARASEFRITHRAHBER
ARARSREEAEREE(EEAEFFREE
EBIEXVER) Z B « FERARR D R I&EFH7E
BRIRREBS R BB BRAIEAR A% E
KR AR IR IR B A R A E 505535215
FiEBEFELMA  NBHKE LT
RAEZETEFRZINEETFTRBEBANELA
A MBI e



Report of Directors EEF &

As at 31 December 2013, according to the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, the
following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive
of the Company) had interests and short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company:

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares

Name of shareholder Nature of interest

REEME ERMtE

Favor King Limited Corporate 1
NG| 1

CHAN Wing Kwai Corporate

BRECE yNC]

China Carrie Enterprises Beneficiary

(Hong Kong) Limited

TESMNEE(FE)ERAR Ba

Lucky Creation Limited Beneficiary

I AR AA B

Unigreat Holding Limited Beneficiary
BE&

Notes:

1. These interests were held by Glory Add, a company which is wholly-

owned by Favor King Limited. Favor King Limited is wholly-owned by Mr.
CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting.

2. These interests were underlying shares held by Lucky Creation Limited, a
company which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Wing Kwai.

3. The letter “L"” denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes short
position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, there was
no person (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
and/or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or
more of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of the
Group.

R-ZE—=F+-"A=+—H  REAAQF
IRBRE A LG IG0IF33615FTHE T A THETE
ZERMAHE c M FAL(RRAREE KITH
BEBRIN R AR B RRD &R A

Az WM AN .
mMIRE -

271,000,000 (S)

262,610,000 (L)

5.91% (S)

5.73% (L)

R 15 R A B AR £ #E
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage in
shares & the Company’s
underlying issued share
shares capital Note
BEBEREROK SRR NN
HEROGEE CERITRABHGL M
,290,961,336 (L) 28.15% (L) 1
,290,961,336 (S) 28.15% (S)
825,600,000 (L) 18.00% (L) 2
271,000,000 (S) 5.91% (S)
271,000,000 (L) 5.91% (L)
825,600,000 (L) 18.00% (L) 2

1. Il 55 #25 Fi Favor King Limited® & # A 2 A AlGlory
Add#EA ° BRISEA R BIE 2 -2 & HEAFavor King
Limited °

2. S AERERD  AREELEEZEREFZA
AmEERABRES -

3, [LIBREFE  [SIETRKE

BREXHBEEEN R_FT—=F1+_-A
=t—8 BMECAAL(RARAEZRITK
ARELRR SN AN R R D M AR RA R D P R B 1
HIOR R B INR IR TE 75 & B B 151 3£ 33615
FIFEENERLMA - R/ RERXEEDRF
BEBEITRAEBERNS% A FER - WA
EARAT  EREAKEIMEEXER
AIHRRAE LIRER S
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Pursuant to the placing agreement dated 17 April 2013 (the
“Placing Agreement”), the Company allotted and issued
an aggregate of 397,052,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company on 26 April 2013 to at least six independent investors
at a price of HK$0.122 each under the general mandate
granted to the Directors of the Company by its shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 6
June 2012. The closing price per share of the Company on
17 April 2013, being the date of the Placing Agreement, as
quoted on the Stock Exchange was HK$0.122. Net proceeds
of approximately HK$48 million raised was used as general
working capital.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 16 October
2013 (the "Subscription Agreement”) entered into among
the Company, Lucky Creation Limited (the “Subscriber”)
and Mr. CHAN Wing Kwai, the Subscriber’s guarantor, the
Subscriber agreed to subscribe for (within six months from 22
October 2013, the date on which the conditions precedent
were fulfilled) and the Company agreed to issue and allot
an aggregate of 825,600,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company (the “Subscription Share(s)”) at a price of HK$0.26
each under the general mandate granted to the Directors of
the Company by its shareholders at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 11 June 2013. The closing price per
share of the Company on 16 October 2013, being the date of
the Subscription Agreement, as quoted on the Stock Exchange
was HK$0.26.

The Subscriber may subscribe for all the Subscription Shares
in one go or in two separate tranches within six months from
22 October 2013 pursuant to the terms of the Subscription
Agreement. As at the date of this report, no Subscription
Shares are issued nor allotted. Net proceeds of approximately
HK$215 million will be used for general working capital
purposes.

On 31 August 2012, Burwill Minerals Limited (“BML"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Sale
and Purchase Agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
with Revenue Generator Limited (the “Purchaser”) pursuant to
which BML had conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser
had conditionally agreed to acquire 70.12% of the issued
share capital of Tai Xin Minerals Limited, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

On 31 May 2013, the Purchaser confirmed that it could not
complete the financing for the consideration on or before 31
May 2013, a condition precedent under the Sale and Purchase
Agreement. Accordingly, the Sale and Purchase Agreement had
lapsed.

BE_Z—=FNA++tHZEESHE(E
EWHEl) A2 ER=-ZZE—=F1A
—+RH BEERREA-_Z——-FXAH
BOZARRBRRBFEFRS IR TFEET 2 —
RRIMERRE  RERBE0122 THEREER R
25174 397,052,000k A AR F LB FE
DREBIREE - R E—=FMA++
B (BNfD & a5 B HY) B 3 P B 3R B0 AR A B A%
B THE AFIRBE0.1227T - FIBFIEFE
H)EHA4, 8008 TTHIE—REEES °
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([RERB])  TERBHFRE(RZ-ZE—=
F+HAZ T B (R GEHEEREBHE) BN
AAAR)AZHBCIERARERERD - X=
T—=F+A+B (B RER=EE)
B X PTAT IR A R B D W B AFR S K
0.267T °

REBFURERORERREGEAR_Z—
F+AZ+—BRANEAR—IXEKD X
REZIRERD - RAFREBH @ HER
B (BT AL EE - ATIERIBFRA B
215 THAE—REEES -

R-EBE——FNA=+—"8 AQrZ2E&H
BARBREEERAR([EHEE]) &
Revenue Generator Limited ([ B 7 1) 5T 37 B&
HEEm=(ROHEEH=E])  BUHER
BEAGKHHRSEERE DB KEHRE
B E AN AIIEEEH B A FTai Xin Minerals
Limited 70.12% 2 3£ 7TRE 7R o

%

FR-ZZB-—Z=FRAA=1T—H@EREKEE
—E-=FRA=+—HIEUATKEK
RHEE(RNEBEHHRE N EREFZ
) o Btk - IR BB B SR -

| ymg % mi



Report of Directors EEF &

Other than the share option schemes of the Company disclosed
above, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company with no specific term
of office or for an initial term of two years (subject to individual
contract) from the date of appointment and will continue
thereafter, until terminated by not less than one to six months
(subject to individual contract) notice in writing served by either
party on the other. Each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years which is
renewable for another three years and can be terminated by
notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

On 1 March 2014, the annual salaries of each of Messrs.
CHAN Shing, SIT Hoi Tung, LAU Ting, TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia,
KWOK Wai Lam and SHAM Kai Man, Executive Directors of the
Company, were increased by approximately 4.8%.

The Director’s fee of Mr. CUI Shu Ming, an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company, was fixed at HK$35,000
per month with effect from 1 March 2014.

Mr. HUANG Shenglan resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Symphony Holdings Limited with effect
from 27 November 2013.

BRARBIREBRAER SIS - REERARF
HiZf A7)~ s H M E R R [F FHE AR
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Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,
there was no contracts of significance (as defined in Note 15
of Appendix 16 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)) in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which any of the Company’s
Directors or members of its management had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group and
the employees’ retirement benefit costs charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 164.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

The Company has established an Audit Committee which
comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr. HUANG Shenglan and
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
discussed with the management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting matters. The audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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The accounts for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose
term of office will expire upon the annual general meeting.
A resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited as auditors of the Company for the subsequent
year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2011 were
audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng. In March 2012, the
practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganised as
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. Save for the above, there
has been no change in auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
CHAN Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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The Directors believe that good corporate governance is an
essential element in enhancing the confidence of shareholders,
investors, employees, business partners and the community as
a whole and also the performance of the Group. The board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) reviews the corporate
governance structure and practices from time to time and
makes necessary arrangements to ensure business activities
and decision making processes are made in a proper and
prudent manner.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
December 2013, except for the deviations as disclosed in this
report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Shing (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager)

Mr. YANG Dawei

Ms. LAU Ting

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. YIN Mark (resigned on 12 March 2014)

Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CUI Shu Ming

Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai

Mr. CHIANG Bun
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As at the date of this report, the Board comprised eleven
Directors, seven of whom are Executive Directors (including the
Chairman) and four of whom are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each
Director are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors” of this annual report. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal actions against
the Directors.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development
of the Group and determining policies and practices on the
Company’s corporate governance. It also monitors the financial
performance and the internal controls of the Group’s business
operations. Executive Directors are responsible for running
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board.
The day-to-day running of the Company is delegated to the
management with department heads responsible for different
aspects of the businesses/functions.

The Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgement on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group through their contributions in
board meetings.

The Board considers that each Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company is independent in character and
judgement. The Company has received from each Independent
Non-executive Director a written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the Group’s business
development, operation and financial performance. Notice of
at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular board
meetings to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. All
regular board meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which
a schedule of matters is addressed to the Board. All Directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information which enables the Board
to make an informed decision on the matters to be discussed
and considered at the board meetings. Minutes of board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.
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To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among the members of the
Board except that Ms. LAU Ting is the spouse of Mr. CHAN
Shing.

Pursuant to the Code provision A.6.5, Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills, so they can ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the
Directors with written materials, as well as recommended
some seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director’s
duties and responsibilities.

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
Code provision A.6.5 by reading all materials provided by the
Company Secretary and/or attending regular training launched
by the professional bodies during the review period.

As stipulated in Code provision A.1.1, the board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals with active
participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of a majority of directors entitled
to be present. As the Company did not announce its quarterly
results, two regular Board meetings were held during the year
for reviewing and approving the interim and annual financial
performance of the Group, which did not fully comply with the
relevant Code provision. Board meetings will be held on other
occasions when Board decisions are required.
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During the year under review, two regular Board meetings and
one general meeting (the annual general meeting for the year
2013) were held. Details of the attendance of the Directors are
as follows:

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHAN Shing BRIk ST A
(Chairman and Managing Director) (EEFEFELE)
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager) —&$/8 52 5 4 (B A84EFE)
Mr. YANG Dawei BARERE
Ms. LAU Ting Epeyesn
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia =L+
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam BEHRLE
Mr. YIN Mark FTkHE

(resigned on 12 March 2014)

Mr. SHAM Kai Man SRS
Independent Non-Executive Directors B EF{TES
Mr. CUI Shu Ming BEERLE

Mr. HUANG Shenglan EBE A

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai BREFRE S £

Mr. CHIANG Bun SRS

The roles of the chairman and chief executive were not
performed by separate individuals as stipulated in Code
provision A.2.1. The Chairman and Managing Director of
the Company, Mr. CHAN Shing, currently assumes the role
of the chairman and also the chief executive responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies of and organising the implementation structure for
the Company and also managing the Group’s overall business
operations. Given the nature of the Group’s businesses which
require considerable market expertise, the Board believed
that the vesting of the two roles provides the Group with
stable and consistent leadership and allows for more effective
planning and implementation of long term business strategies.
The Board will continuously review the effectiveness of the
structure to balance the power and authority of the Board and
the management.

(R=F—195= 4= ARHE)
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The Directors have not been required by the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”) to retire by rotation at least once
every three years. However, in accordance with Bye-law 85 of
the Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting of the Company
one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
greater than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation save
any Director holding office as Chairman or Managing Director.
All Non-Executive Directors of the Company had entered
into service contracts with the Company for an initial term of
three years which is renewable for another three years and
the Board will ensure the retirement of each Director, other
than the one who holds the office as Chairman or Managing
Director, by rotation at least once every three years in order to
comply with Code provisions. The Chairman will not be subject
to retirement by rotation as stipulated in Code provision
A.4.2, as the Board considered that the continuity of office
of the Chairman provides the Group a strong and consistent
leadership and is of great importance to the smooth operations
of the Group. Messrs. KWOK Wai Lam, CUI Shu Ming and
CHAN Ming Fai are subject to retirement by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with Bye-
law 85 of the Bye-laws.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12
September 2006 with specific written terms of reference
which deal with its authority and duties. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr.
HUANG Shenglan and Mr. SIT Hoi Tung. The chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. CUI Shu Ming.

The Remuneration Committee will meet to determine the
policy for the remuneration of Directors and the senior
management, and consider and review the terms of service
contracts of the Directors and the senior management.
In determining the emolument payable to Directors, the
Remuneration Committee took into consideration factors
such as time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
abilities, performance and contribution of the Directors to
the Group, the performance and profitability of the Group,
the remuneration benchmark in the industry, the prevailing
market/employment conditions and the desirability of
performance-based remuneration.
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One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during
the year ended 31 December 2013 to review and make
adjustments to remuneration packages of the Directors. Details

BE-_TZ—=F+-A=+—HILEER -
HBITT-AFHEZE SR AR L AR
EEHINEE  c HFINEESZEREZHE

of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee members  zE4EEIFH T :
are as follows:
Members’ Attendance
ZEHERH
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLE
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee) (FZEEE/E) 11
Mr. HUANG Shenglan EBESEE 11
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung BB R AE 171

The Nomination Committee was established on 23 March 2012
with specific written terms of reference which deal with its
authority and duties. The Nomination Committee comprises
five members, Mr. CHAN Shing, Mr. SIT Hoi Tung, Mr. CUI
Shu Ming, Mr. HUANG Shenglan and Mr. CHAN Ming Fai. Mr.
CHAN Shing is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee’s duties include:

o to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Directors and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

o to assess the independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors; and

o to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive.
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One Nomination Committee meeting was held during the year
ended 31 December 2013 to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board. Details of the attendance of the
Nomination Committee members are as follows:

Mr. CHAN Shing BRI ST
(Chairman of Nomination Committee) (IREZES
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung BB R A
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLE
Mr. HUANG Shenglan EHEELE
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai BREBHE S

The Board is also responsible for determining policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company and
performing the corporate governance duties as follows:

to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Company;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

=
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The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and provides
the Board with advice and recommendations. As at the date
of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three members,
Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr. HUANG Shenglan and Mr. CHAN Ming
Fai. All of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. CUI Shu Ming. The
Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise
in business, accounting and financial management in the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee’s functions includes:

o to review and monitor financial reporting and the
reporting judgement contained in them; and

o to review financial and internal controls, accounting
policies and practices with management, internal and

external auditors.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year

EZEZEER T —FKL -
HERKES - Fﬁ#&iagﬁ BEZEE®
M=RKEEK  DRIREERELE B
ExERRAELE  2HHRBIIERIT
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K& ﬁﬁéz\amkmiﬂlﬁﬁ/\TA S EEr
NGB ERE T HEER

REZRR

ERZEENIEEREE
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B ER R

e HEHEE W*B&?\\Hﬂ?%mm% 3
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ERZEENFEARBIT=ZREGH  INE

under review, two of which were attended by the external ZHEMEGSAMAEKEAAER AR Y HEE
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. Details of the FMMA&:3% - BEXEEEE 8 2 HFE ik
attendance of the Audit Committee members are as follows: EVOENE
Members’ Attendance
ZEHERY
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLE
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (BERETE=FE) 3/3
Mr. HUANG Shenglan E o 3/3
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai BREAHE S 3/3

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and auditing, internal controls and financial
reporting matters. The audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had engaged
the Group’s external auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited and network firms, to provide the following services
and their fees charged are set out as below:

HE-_T—=F+-A=1+—HLEFER
SEZEASEIIEZEMBEAESTMES
FTERARRMiEKBIRENTRE - Wik
IMERMT :

Fee charged
for the year ended 31 December
WHEE A
BE+-A=1t—HLFE
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
it koo
Types of Services B A% %85l
Audit of consolidated financial statements ~ £EFE4RAS P ERKRET
of the Group for the year 1,161,000 1,106,000
Non-audit services e RS 60,000 90,000

The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and
the responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders
are set out on pages 39 and 40.

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam is an Executive Director and the Company
Secretary of the Company and he had fulfilled the requirement
of Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year. He
has attained not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year and his biography is set out in the
“Biographies of Directors” section of this annual report.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the
Company’s paid-up capital may request the Board to
convene a special general meeting. The requisition must state
the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office or head
office of the Company. If the Board does not within twenty-
one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a special general meeting, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a special general meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date.
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If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
Director of the Company for election as a director at any
general meeting of the Company (the “General Meeting”),
he/she can deposit a written requisition to that effect at
the registered office or head office of the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary. In order for the Company
to inform shareholders of that proposal, the written requisition
must state the full name of the person proposed for election
as a director, include the person’s biographical details as
required by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed
by the shareholder (other than the person to be proposed)
concerned and that person indicating his/her willingness to be
elected. The period for lodgment of such a written requisition
will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the General Meeting and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of the General Meeting. If the
requisition is received less than eleven business days prior
to the General Meeting, the Company will need to consider
the adjournment of the General Meeting in order to allow
shareholders at least ten business days’ notice of the proposal.
For any other resolution(s) to be proposed by shareholder(s)
to put forward, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders of the
Company or not less than one hundred shareholders may
submit a written requisition to move such resolution(s); and the
requisition must be signed by all requisitionist(s) and deposited
for the attention of the Company Secretary at the registered
office or head office of the Company not less than six weeks
before the General Meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the
General Meeting in case of any other requisition together with
sufficient money to meet all relevant expenses. If a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution is received less than eleven
business days prior to the General Meeting, the Company will
need to consider the adjournment of the General Meeting in
order to allow shareholders at least ten business days’ notice of
the proposal.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary by
post to the Company of Unit 1402, Office Tower, Convention
Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email to
ir@burwill.com.

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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B st E AR A
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BURWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 41 to 162, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
31 December 2013, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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Balance Sheets
At 31 December 2013

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Leasehold land and land
use rights
Property, plant and
equipment
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Due from subsidiaries
Investments in associates
Club debentures
Prepayments and other
receivables
Deferred income tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial
instruments

Bills and accounts
receivable

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Due from subsidiaries

Due from associates

Due from a related
company

Income tax refundable

Cash and bank balances

Assets held for sale
Total current assets

Total assets

EERER

RZE—=F+=A=+—8H

Note
Hizz
BE
kRBEE
MEL R
i FE 6
MmE - EER
B 7
REME 8
EREE 9
KB RRIRE 10
NIV 10
BENERE 11
2EES
BFR
HERKH 16
BEMEREE 24
BIERHEE
RBEE
TE 13
BRATEEBER
SR A B T B
14
THESRIA
15
ST KK
IEIR 16
e BERR
HERKH 16
HIBARRZR 10
L UNCIlE 11
MENERT
17
A e F AT
B RRTHES 18
FHERE 19
BREEE

heE

Consolidated Company
) AT

2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETR BETT
10,525 10,722 - -
434,414 431,390 - =
1,007,781 883,520 - -
190,798 191,033 - -
= = 52,825 52,825
- - 940,403 1,254,922
75,194 72,148 = _
1,509 1,509 90 90
39,755 38,540 - -
44,979 42,620 - =
1,804,955 1,671,482 993,318 1,307,837
77,256 107,583 - -
1,416 700 968 239
556 = - =
1,130,252 1,189,374 - =
159,109 149,339 447 104
= = 505,959 698,213
33,328 29,808 - -
1,751 1,751 - =
155 155 - =
164,992 229,497 695 31,124
1,568,815 1,708,207 508,069 729,680
- 25,000 - =
1,568,815 1,733,207 508,069 729,680
3,373,770 3,404,689 1,501,387 2,037,517




Balance Sheets EE& &%

At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=A=+—8H

EQUITY B
Equity attributable to ARAEEFEA
owners of the Company  FE{5#Ez

Share capital A
Other reserves ek
Retained profits TREE B

Non-controlling interests ~ JE#ERRIERS

Total equity BiEn
LIABILITIES =
Non-current liabilities kRBaE

Borrowings BX

Provision for land TERKIRE

restoration and PR AR S
environmental costs

Deferred income tax ELFTEHAR

liabilities

Total non-current liabilities #ZIERENAE

Current liabilities REEE
Borrowings B
Derivative financial fTHEERMT A
instruments
Due to subsidiaries U IEINGIE ]

Due to a related company ~ REGERRIFZIA

Bills and accounts payable  ERZiE R EMIRE

Other payables and HUEMIRER

accruals i ER
Income tax payable B FSTH
Total current liabilities BrRHaE
Total liabilities BafE

Total equity and liabilities #EXKEE
Net current assets RBEEFE

Total assets less current BEERREBEE
liabilities

CHAN SHING
BR 454

Chairman
FE

Note
fzF

20
22
22

23

26

24

23

15
10
17
25

Consolidated Company
) AT

2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETR BETT
458,671 418,966 458,671 418,966
985,351 966,582 975,452 980,550
76,369 66,483 47,160 608,747
1,520,391 1,452,031 1,481,283 2,008,263
321,816 290,946 - -
1,842,207 1,742,977 1,481,283 2,008,263
224,485 252,239 - -
4,389 4,258 = -
227,965 199,198 - =
456,839 455,695 - -
694,508 748,852 - -
2,496 - - -
- - 18,199 27,208
23,315 23,315 - =
177,073 239,617 - -
174,287 190,685 1,905 2,046
3,045 3,548 = -
1,074,724 1,206,017 20,104 29,254
1,531,563 1,661,712 20,104 29,254
3,373,770 3,404,689 1,501,387 2,037,517
494,091 527,190 487,965 700,426
2,299,046 2,198,672 1,481,283 2,008,263

KWOK WAI LAM

R
Director

EF



Consolidated Income Statement 428382 %

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income and net gains
Selling and distribution expenses

General and administrative expenses
Share option expenses

Operating profit/(loss)

Finance costs

Fair value losses on other
financial assets

Impairment losses on goodwill

Impairment losses on an associate
Share of profits/(losses) of associates

Profit/(Loss) before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit/(Loss) for the year

(Loss)/Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company for the year

— basic and diluted (HK cents)

BHE_T—=6+_A=t+—HILEE

2013 2012

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

Bt BT T BT

X 5 4,548,175 4,916,324

SHEKA 28 (4,402,174) (4,821,015)

EF 146,001 95,309

HEolg A Kbz 558 27 88,874 58,758

HENKDHER 28 (54,291) (58,211)

—MEITHER 28 (91,327) (102,603)

FE AR ST 29 = (266)

E AR (EE) 89,257 (7,013)

= ®N 30 (44,071) (53,307)
HEBisEE

NEEEE - (686)
SRR 9 = (394,030)
Bt N R)RUE 11 = (2,237)
FrihEt e N al &,

(fE518) 11 799 (521)
BETSRLAT &R,

(E518) 45,985 (457,794)
R8sz 31 (26,474) (14)
FERM(EE) 19,511 (457,808)
(B18),/BREER
ARAERFEA (3,667) (465,055)
Bl 23,178 7,247

19,511 (457,808)
FEARQNRERFTAE A
FEERBAREE 33
—EAREE (B (0.08) (10.01)




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income %:

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Share of other comprehensive income
of associates

Currency translation differences

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income/(expense)
for the year

Attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income/(expense)
for the year

Note
Kt

B/ (BR)

HEe2mEA :
Efs%z? GEERT R E

1Bz i IE B
Fﬂﬁﬂ;ﬁ%ﬁ/&

Euz2mlA 22
HHIE KRR

FEETEZEEA -
MR IA

FE2EEA(ZH)
e

BB

AARIESRA A
FEIER M

FEZEEA(ZH)
e

B

SERHEBHER

BT =FF+ZA=1+—HILEFE

2013 2012
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BE T BT

19,511 (457,808)
799 281
34,633 6,501
35,432 6,782
54,943 (451,026)
21,755 (460,380)
33,188 9,354
54,943 (451,026)




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity s8R Z S B R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Balance at 1 January 2012

Comprehensive income
(Loss)/Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Share of other comprehensive income
of associates

Currency translation differences
- Group
- Associates

Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income/(expense)

Repurchase of shares

Employees share option scheme:
- value of employee services

Capital injection by
non-controlling interests

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2012

“T——5-f-RE&kK

2EHA
FE(58)/BF

EEEEHA
%HW““

EE2EHA
ERERZR

—£F

BT
EERERALE
2ERA/ (XHH) &8
RERR
TR 2

-EERHEE
SRR TR

mkm

't

RESREANRHEE

e B
K

Note
fifst

22

22
22

20822

22

BE—T—

Attributable to

=F+-A=t+—HILFE

owners of the Company

ARAESRA AR

Non-

Share Other Retained  controlling Total
capital reserves profits interests equity
RE  HeRE  RERN EERER G S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARTT  A%Tn  B%Tn BETn BRI
487,536 966,297 531,538 281,222 2,266,593
- - (465,055) 7,247 (457,808)

- 281 - - 281

- 3,905 - 2,107 6,012

- 489 - - 489

= 4,675 = 2,107 6,782

= 4,675 (465,055) 9,354 (451,026)
(68,570) (4,656) - - (73,226)
_ 266 = - 266

- - - 370 370
(68,570) (4,390) - 370 (72,590)
418,966 966,582 66,483 290,946 1,742,977




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity SR &R S EX

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_ZT-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE
Attributable to
owners of the Company
FAREREREAEL
Non-
Share Other Retained  controlling Total
capital reserves profits interests equity

Bx  HeRk  RERR  F2REm Y b
Note  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

M EB%Fn RETn BRTR BNtz EMTx

Balance at 1 January 2013 —T-=F-R-B#& 418,966 966,582 66,483 290,946 1,742,977
Comprehensive income 2EKA
(Loss)/Profit for the year EE(ER) /B - - (3,667) 23,178 19,511
Other comprehensive income HEpZ2EHA
Share of other comprehensive income ~ F {5 B4 A 7]

of associates AB2EUA 22 - 799 - - 799
Currency translation differences ERELES

- Group -£§ 22 - 22,433 - 10,010 32,443

- Associates AN 2 - 2,190 - - 2,190
Total other comprehensive income ERRk Nt - 25,422 - 10,010 35,432
Total comprehensive 2ERA/ (X))

income/(expense) &% - 25,422 (3,667) 33,188 54,943
Issue of shares Baikin 20822 39,705 8,735 - - 48,440
Share issue expenses KB 22 = (280) = = (280)
Release upon lapse of NG TRIE

share options [o] 3 22 - (13,553) 13,553 - -
Dividends ke = = = (3,873) (3.873)
Acquisition of additional WEHBA A

interests in a subsidiary BIMER 22837 - (1,555) - 1,555 -
Total transactions with owners HEZEEANRZEE 39,705 (6,653) 13,553 (2,318) 44,287
Balance at 31 December 2013 —E-=ft-A=1-H

&% 458,671 985,351 76,369 321,816 1,842,207




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z5R € RER

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Overseas tax paid

Overseas tax refunded

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment
Acquisition of investment properties
Acquisition of intangible assets
Capital contribution to an associate
Proceeds from disposal of
assets held for sale
Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Decrease in short-term bank deposits
Funds (applied to)/released from
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, net
Interest received
Increase in due from associates
Dividends received from an associate
Dividends received from financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Net cash generated from
investing activities

HE-_ZT—=F+_A=t+—HItEE

2013 2012
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HaF BT T TS T IT
EETHNREARE
BBEANRE 35(a) 11,145 208,841
BAFHE (44,256) (53,063)
BENBEBREH - (147)
BAREINHIE (6,837) (3,120)
RBIGINRIE - 231
EEEE(FTA),/EEW
FIRE (39,948) 152,742
RETHNRLSTE
AV - #Hz R
B (2,426) (1,381)
BAKREYE (375) =
BAELEE (799) (202)
EE T —REE QT - (4,603)
HEFHEERE
FIECEN 25,000 =
HEMS - R R
BRI 450 181
RHASRI T R A - 29,686
e (AR, kB
BRAFESBIEDR
IR IS EE - F5E (1,898) 8,523
BUFH B 1,508 1,215
Hés 28 N ) R I N (3.471) (29,623)
AN 3N 742 3,395
BUIRAFEE B
Bz IR A B 75
BERE 17 80
WEEBEER
FIRE 18,748 7,271




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z5R € RER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_ZT-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE
2013 2012
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaE BT T ST T
Cash flows from financing activities REEFEHNRERE
Issue of shares BLTRR D 48,440 =
Share issue expenses IR 21T WM (280) =
Shares repurchase expenses % {7 B8 2 - (1,914)
Decrease in trust receipts STIRERITER
bank loans A (3,202) (243,960)
Additions of other bank loans SR AEBIRITER = 295,228
Repayment of other bank loans EEETRITER (88,592) (210,703)
Additions of other loans FETEER 10,000 9,289
Interest element of finance lease rental NEIEHE
payments IRSR= ) (72) (115)
Capital element of finance lease rental {NRIEHE
payments RN (848) (550)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEMIRITHFROR L 2,008 459
Dividends paid B E (3.873) =
Net cash used in financing activities MEEFHTERFERS (36,419) (152,266)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeRIREEEY
cash equivalents OB ), g (57,619) 7,747
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HZBEM
at 1 January REEEY 199,074 190,934
Effect of exchange rate changes EREE) s & 876 393
Cash and cash equivalents R+—A=+—HZRS

at 31 December ;IBE£EEY 35(b) 142,331 199,074




Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in steel trading, steel processing,
mineral resources and commercial property.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The Company’s
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 1983.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 28 March 2014.

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss and investment properties, which are carried
at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The following standards have been
adopted by the Group for the first time
for the financial year beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 and are relevant to
the Group:

Amendment to HKAS 1 “Presentation
of Financial Statements” regarding
other comprehensive income. The
main change resulting from these
amendments is a requirement for
entities to group items presented
in “other comprehensive income”
(OCI) on the basis of whether they
are potentially reclassifiable to profit
or loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments). This amendment did not
have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 27 (revised 2011) “Separate
Financial Statements” includes the
provisions on separate financial
statements that are left after the control
provisions of HKAS 27 have been
included in the new HKFRS 10. This
revised standard did not have a material
impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

HKAS 28 (revised 2011) “Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures”
includes the requirements for joint
ventures, as well as associates, to be
equity accounted following the issue of
HKFRS 11. This revised standard did not
have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

2.1

IRBLELXE ()

2.1.1 Bit R BB RKE

(a)

REBRN 2 FET R &
R

REFBR-_ZE—=F—
A—BRBZTBRFE
BRI T RIZER]
WHAREEERA :
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group (continued)

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” builds on existing principles
by identifying the concept of control
as the determining factor in whether
an entity should be included within
the consolidated financial statements
of the parent company. The standard
provides additional guidance to assist
in the determination of control where
this is difficult to assess. This new
standard did not have a material impact
on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities” includes the disclosure
requirements for all forms of interests
in other entities, including joint
arrangements, associates, structured
entities and other off balance sheet
vehicles. The disclosures required by
HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive
than those previously required by the
respective standards.

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”
aims to improve consistency and reduce
complexity by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single
source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across
HKFRSs. The requirements, which are
largely aligned between HKFRSs and
US GAAP, do not extend the use of fair
value accounting but provide guidance
on how it should be applied where its
use is already required or permitted by
other standards within HKFRSs. The
disclosures required by HKFRS 13 are
generally more extensive than those
previously required by the respective
standards.

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not
yet adopted

A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2013,
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”,
addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.
HKFRS 9 was issued in November
2009 and October 2010. It replaces
the parts of HKAS 39 that relate to
the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. HKFRS 9
requires financial assets to be classified
into two measurement categories:
those measured as at fair value and
those measured at amortised cost.
The determination is made at initial
recognition. The classification depends
on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and
the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the instrument. For financial liabilities,
the standard retains most of the
HKAS 39 requirements. The main
change is that, in cases where the
fair value option is taken for financial
liabilities, the part of a fair value change
due to an entity’s own credit risk is
recorded in other comprehensive income
rather than the income statement,
unless this creates an accounting
mismatch. The Group is yet to assess
HKFRS 9's full impact.

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not
yet adopted (continued)

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective
that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition
method to account for business
combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved
in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition
date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value
of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or
as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not re-measured,
and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement (Note 2.8).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (that is, as transactions
with the owners of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners). The difference
between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying amount of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.
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2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is
re-measured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.3

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss
of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss, where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent to “share
of profits/(losses) of associates” in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

2.3

2.4

2.5

Associates (continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
board of directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income
statement within “general and administrative
expenses”.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities
denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to
changes in amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss, and other changes in
carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available-for-sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.

25 NEER(E)

(b)

R G RAEH

SINERXZEARHENE
EHERFHEHME B
NFHEEERER  BER
WEEE® - R TN EERER
R AR EVIR & % B
MR B - BEWF
R EEE S BE AN
SNEFTENEREEMAR
NEKRERBEELNEN
BEESRAIBaRER

FEERLREERABENR
Pty [— BB ATRER R 2
% -

DERAFEEZINESE
BEBHEZAFEZLS DN
RESBERAEHEE 2
EXEBELRESFREEH
CED BEBEXEED
ZEZZBENBRER - M
IREMEECEHUREER
WA P HERR o

FEBURBEERARMD]
iR FEEBEZRIIKRD
) EN ZRERBTE
RARFERAIEERN—
B - IEEHEMBEE(HI
DRI E AR ) B
EXREZHEREEECE2EN
AR e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(©)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

o income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

o all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or
loss.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise offices. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other property,
plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease
commences amortisation from the time when the
land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Leasehold land
classified as finance

Shorter of remaining
lease term or useful life

lease

— Buildings 20 to 50 years

— Leasehold 2 to 10 years (over the
improvements period of leases)

— Machinery 8 to 10 years

— Furniture and 4 to 10 years
equipment

— Motor vehicles 4 to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within “other income and net
gains” in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.7

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that is not occupied by the Group. It also
includes properties that are being constructed or
developed for future use as investment properties.
Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance leases.
Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at
each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value
is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset. If the information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets
or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in
fair values are recorded in the consolidated income
statement as part of a valuation gain or loss in
“other income and net gains”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.8

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Group's
interest in net fair value of the net identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquiree and the fair value of the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination
is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored
at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs of disposal. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.

Mining right

Mining right acquired separately is measured
on initial recognition at cost. Mining
right acquired in a business combination
is recognised at fair value at the date of
acquisition. Mining right has a finite useful
life and is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of mining
right over its estimated useful life of 30 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.8

Intangible assets (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are stated
at cost less impairment losses. Exploration
and evaluation assets include topographical
and geological surveys, exploratory drilling,
sampling and trenching and activities
in relation to commercial and technical
feasibility studies, and expenditure incurred
to secure further mineralisation in existing
ore bodies and to expand the capacity of a
mine. Expenditure incurred prior to acquiring
legal rights to explore an area is written
off as incurred. When it can be reasonably
ascertained that a mining property is capable
of commercial production, exploration and
evaluation costs are transferred to mining
right and are amortised based on the
accounting policy as stated in “Mining right”
above. If any project is abandoned during
the evaluation stage, the total expenditure
thereon will be written off.

Domain names and trademarks

Acquisition costs of domain names and legal
costs related to the registration of trademarks
are capitalised and amortised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of
ten years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of ten years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.9

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life (for
example, goodwill or intangible assets not ready to
use) are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held-
for-sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale when their carrying amount is to
be recovered principally through a sale transaction
and a sale is considered highly probable. The non-
current assets (except for certain assets as explained
below) (or disposal group), are stated at the lower
of carrying amount and fair value less costs of
disposal. Deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates) and
investment properties, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.11 Financial assets

2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise,
they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not
qguoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the
amounts that are settled or expected to
be settled more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“bills and accounts receivable”,
“deposits and other receivables”,
“due from associates”, “due from a
related company” and “cash and bank
balances” in the consolidated balance
sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.11 Financial assets (continued) 2.11 BiiEE(E)
2.11.1 Classification (continued) 2111 5 (#&)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories.
They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures
or management intends to dispose of
it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date (the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset). Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.11 Financial assets (continued)
2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are presented
in the consolidated income statement within
“other income and net gains” in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of “other income and net
gains” when the Group’'s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the consolidated income
statement.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “other income
and net gains”. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part
of “other income and net gains” when
the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. For debt securities,
the Group uses the criteria referred to in
(a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists
for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss (measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit
or loss) is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
the consolidated income statement.

2.14 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are accounted for at fair value through profit or
loss. Changes in the fair value of these derivatives
instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in the profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out method. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity).
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts receivable are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of accounts and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Accounts and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. In
the consolidated and entity balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue

of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.19

2.20

Accounts payable

Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

2.21

2.22

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control
the reversal of the temporary difference for
associates. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary
difference not recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(©)

Deferred income tax (continued)
Outside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates
only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.23 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined
contribution plans, the assets of which
are generally held in separate trustee —
administered funds.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in
the current and prior periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

(©)

Pension obligations (continued)

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Bonus plans

Provisions for bonus plans due wholly within
12 months after the end of each reporting
period are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave
and maternity or paternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.24 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

o excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service
conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which
all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant
date and therefore the grant date fair value is
estimated for the purposes of recognising the
expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.24 Share-based payments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs
are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

2.25 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

2.25

2.26

Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated
net of discounts returns and value added taxes.
The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity; and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below. The Group bases its estimates of return
on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.

(@) Sale of goods — income from sale of goods
is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have been
transferred to customers.

(b) Rental income — rental income is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

(c) Service income — service income is recognised
in the accounting periods in which the services
are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.27

2.28

2.29

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount
to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans and receivables is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in other long-term payables. The interest element
of the finance cost is charged to the consolidated
income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the
useful life of the asset and the lease term.
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2.28

2.29
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

2.30 Dividend distribution

2.31

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

2.31 Related parties (continued)

3.1

(b)  (continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);
and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group'’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a treasury
committee under policies approved by the board of
directors. The committee identifies, evaluates and
hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The board provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as
written policies covering specific areas, such as
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
use of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative financial instruments, and investment of
excess liquidity.

B BRRME

231 BER(E)

3.1

(b) (%)

v) BEAALRAEENE
TT%KEIE?ﬁ@Ai
ZE‘%%F%/HJE 3 2%

iZmJHEﬁﬁféﬁaﬂ

%‘Jr%\J ;

(vii) D ERE 2 ATHZ
REMEINEE K 2

B (A% ER

R ZEBEE A

=

W & 3 D
c D RED
El

\
’

B EBREE

$%E’Uié§b7¥<§%%ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂﬁ%@t
b - mEAR(BEINERR -
FEF) =R Eﬁi//wgﬁjtﬂ
RE®RRR)  EERREREE
/\}ﬁ. % o Z'XE.E/]IE%EHIKﬁﬁIEE-I—
EE TN TISHTRRME - I
Eiﬁ*%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂ@
BETNZE

RREEHMEZEEREESRR
REZBRNT MEZESE
BEEENEEEV L EREE

BEWEE  FHE R SRR
EERMERRBRERGFIRA
W HMNERE - MEER - EEE

e TASRITERENTESRT
A EARSHSBRBDESFELR
BEF RIS HIRTBR °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has transactional currency
exposures. Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’
functional currency. Approximately 89%
(2012: 88%) of the Group’s turnover
are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the
operating units making the sale, whilst
approximately 8% (2012: 15%) of costs
are denominated in the units’ functional
currency. The Group manages the
foreign exchange exposure arising from
its normal course of business activities
and investments in foreign operations
by funding its local operations and
investments through cash flow
generated from business transactions
locally. The management monitors
foreign exchange exposure closely and
forward exchange contracts are used for
hedging purposes when required.

In view of the fact that Hong Kong dollar
("HK$") is pegged to United States
dollar (“US$"), the Group’s exposure to
change in US$ exchange rate is minimal.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change
in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB") exchange
rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss)
after income tax (due to changes in
the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities) and the Group's equity.
2% (2012: 2%) increase/decrease
represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in RMB
exchange rate which have the most
impact on the Group over the period
until the end of the next reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued)

2013

If HK$ weakens against RMB i TR ARMES
If HK$ strengthens against RMB {8 7t i A R #6854

2012

If HK$ weakens against RMB AT H AR EE
If HK$ strengthens against RMB /87T 3 A R854

3.1 BiBREBEZEGE)

@) mEERE)

(i) SNERR(E)
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in profit after (Decrease) in
RMB income tax equity
BRATEH &
AR®  BRSm/  #nghn/
E#/(FB8) (R4 (R4
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
2 (3,036) (3,036)
(2) 3,036 3,036
Increase/
Increase/  (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in loss after  (Decrease) in
RMB income tax equity
BRETIS 14
ARE Eiegm/ EmEm/
R/ (T) ORid) ORid)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
2 3,263 (3,263)
(2) (3,263) 3,263




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

3.1 UBEREEGE)

@ miEmEE(E)

(i)

Price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair
values of equity securities decrease
as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to
equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as trading
equity investments (Note 14) as at 31
December 2012 and 2013. To manage
its price risk arising from investments in
equity securities, the Group diversifies
its portfolio. The Group's investments
listed in Hong Kong and overseas are
valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period. The
Group is also exposed to commodity
price risk arising from commodity swap
contracts classified as derivative financial
instruments (Note 15) as at 31 December
2013.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to 5% increase/decrease in
the fair values of the equity investments
and derivative financial instruments with
all other variables held constant and
after any impact on income tax, based
on their carrying amounts at the end of
the reporting period.

(iy (EfEER

BEEERRARKRE
UK F K@ B & F
EBEZFEFRAES
NEETREZRER o R
B _FER-FT—=
F+=-A=+—H0 &K
SEmY 2 BEEER
QR B AEBRAE
& (MIsE14) 2 18 Bl A%
K& - KEEBATE
1 A% & R AN 78 5 i B
ERERER - oA
HIGEHBEE - AEBEZ
LETIRNEE KgIN E
™ IR E B E R
WS ERGE R
e = e
B AEBETEERE
I ASTE S R T E (F
F15) 2 mEEELD
R mERRER

TREJEBAKRE &
PTEemITANKRER
Rz RHEESQTE
o, 8 A 5% 2 Bk
B - EMBEEEHEEUR
AR REMPAF
BHFERE -

Increase/
(Decrease)
in carrying
amount
of equity
investments/ Increase/
derivative (Decrease) in Increase/
financial profit after (Decrease) in
instruments income tax equity
BRERE/
fTESMIAE RASHER
IREEEM R,/ G 3y 1
(Ri2) (R4) (R4)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI T BT BETT
2013
5% increase in equity price [RAE®E LEA5% JAl 62 62
5% decrease in equity price RAER® T 5% (71) (62) (62)
5% increase in commodity price EREK LFH5% 1,767 1,475 1,475
5% decrease in commodity price %R E% 5% (1,767) (1,475) (1,475)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Price risk (continued)

2012
5% increase in equity price BRAEE EF5%
5% decrease in equity price RRANE & T F&5%

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market
interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from long-term borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
During 2012 and 2013, the Group's
borrowings at variable rate were
denominated in US$, RMB and HKS$.

The Group has not hedged its exposure
to cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk, as the management considers the
risk is insignificant to the Group.

3.1 HEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's
profit/(loss) after income tax (through
the impact on floating rate borrowings)
and the Group’s equity.

2013

Us$ EYH
RMB AR#
HK$ BT
Us$ EY
RMB AR
HK$ BT
2012

US$ x
RMB ARE
HK$ BT
Us$ EIn
RMB ARE
HK$ BT

3.1 HEEk

B BRRME

SESC-Y)

(a) W5 EE(4E)

(i) BEAERAFEFR
[B\B (4&)
TREVNNEFMBEEE
HNER - AEB 2R
TSRiE AT (E8)
(587 B 7% Bk
BB RAEEE
HEGEAEEE) 28
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in profit after (Decrease) in
basis points income tax equity
BRETER&
F=E BRI/ 53y 1
#m/ (hd) OR4) (R2)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT
100 (2,183) (2,183)
100 (1,125) (1,125)
100 (1,212) (1,212)
(100) 2,183 2,183
(100) 1,125 1,125
(100) 1,212 1,212
Increase/
Increase/  (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in loss after  (Decrease) in
basis points income tax equity
BATEHE
MERS  BREN/  EmEN/
#m/CRd) O GRD)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETIT
100 1,772 (1,772)
100 1,133 (1,133)
100 1,025 1,025
(100) (1,772) 1,772
(100) (1,133) 1,133
(100) (1,025) 1,025




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(©)

Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its
financial assets periodically to ensure that
potential credit risk of the counterparty is
managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision is made for possible defaults. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, due from associates, due from
a related company and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

The Group is also exposed to credit risk
through the granting of guarantees, further
details of which are disclosed in Note 36(d)
and Note 39(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
accounts receivable are disclosed in Note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the
Company's financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

3.1 MBERREEGE)

(c) wBHEDEE(E)

RIRC AN AR Z 3
REBIMR AR HRE
BHRMEEEZFHMAT

HE

Carrying Total More than
amount as per  contractual  On demand 1 year
consolidated undiscounted or within  but less than Over
balance sheet cash flows 1 year 5 years 5 years
RiFE BY#
BERERZ AR 2 EEXRH —FHE k-3
RHE ZHEeRELE —FREE BREER NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BBTR BETR BRI
2013
Group £8
Borrowings EX 918,993 925,269 697,780 156,976 70,513
Derivative financial fiESRMIA
instruments 2,496 2,49 2,496 - -
Due to a related company ~ XEEAFFE 23,315 23,315 23,315 - -
Bills and accounts payable ~ EAZHREMIRE 171,073 171,073 177,073 - -
Other payables and accruals EVEMIRER
Bt ER 141,764 141,764 141,764 - -
Guarantee for loan facilities AKZAFEHHME
granted to an associate EHZER - 11,160 11,160 - -
Guarantees given to banks AEEYEEEE
for mortgage facilities BRERMERT
granted to the buyers of the {EHiZER
Group's properties - 97 97 - -
1,263,641 1,281,174 1,053,685 156,976 70,513
Company AF
Due to subsidiaries AW ELERE 18,199 18,199 18,199 - -
Other payables and accruals HEE1EE
REGHER 1,905 1,905 1,905 - -
20,104 20,104 20,104 - -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEBEZEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) #RmEETEE(E)

Carrying Total More than

amount as per contractual ~ On demand 1 year
consolidated  undiscounted or within  but less than QOver
balance sheet cash flows 1 year 5 years 5 years

BTG [RAVE:0)

BERER:  MAREHZ FEZk, —ENE a1
REE ReRELE —FAEE EREER PAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BRI BETL BT BT

2012
Group £F
Borrowings a5 1,001,091 1,015,895 763,587 164,000 88,308
Due to a related company ~ REJER BIFUE 23,315 23,315 23,315 = -
Bills and accounts payable  ERNZEREMNIEE 239,617 239,617 239,617 = =
Other payables and accruals ~ HEEEMIRE R
fE:t &R 143,428 143,428 143,428 = =

Guarantees for general ABENARITHE

banking facilities and KEFEEES

loan facilities granted to ZER

associates - 22,420 22,420 = =
Guarantees given to banks for AEEMEEE %

B

mortgage facilities granted ~ #ZBEFHMAHELT
to the buyers of the Group’s  {EH Z 1E{R

properties - 94 94 - -
1,407,451 1,444,769 1,192,461 164,000 88,308
Company YN
Due to subsidiaries i INGE ¢ 27,208 27,208 27,208 - -
Other payables and accruals ~ E & EMIEIE
REER 2,046 2,046 2,046 - =

29,254 29,254 29,254 = =




3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of
the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and
cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity (including share capital,
reserves, retained profits and non-controlling
interests as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) and other loans from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries.

3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

B EHE

AEEEEESZ ARAREAE
KEH - REEERFEATRA
73 RERERESERIAREER
ZND PN

RERFHAERERER  ~EEHK
SRBABRRKMNEEZEE @ [
BRBEESHBITHRD -

AEBRERLERHBR AL RE
AN o b e RIRERSH BRI AR
ABRAGE - ERFEREER
(BRGABERBRMAIIRZR
BRIFERDEFIRRAE LRSS
EYE - KRERABEMARE
amly (BREEEEREBERMI
TRV R R BN N IR
Pt s ) KB BB Bl FEFE AR AR R Y

T
ETER-

[EB="N
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3.2 Capital management (continued)

3.3

During 2013, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2012, was to maintain a debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio below 90%. The debt-to-
adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2012 and

2013 were as follows:

Total borrowings
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 35(b))

Net debt

Total equity

Adjusted capital

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio

Fair value estimation

B BRRME

3.2 BE2EE(E)

R-ZE—=F AEBZREAE
%H%%ﬁ& FERF AN b AR
0%  B-_F——FHR - K

SE-CFR-F-=F4-7
=t B ZEHHEHERAN LR

s

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ok e wb
HBE K 918,993 1,001,091

B BeRBESEEY
(Pt#E35(b)) (142,331) (199,074)
BI5F5E 776,662 802,017
HERERS 1,842,207 1,742,977
SRR AN 1,902,143 1,802,699
B AR AL & 41% 44%

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level

2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
at 31 December 2013. See Note 8 for disclosures of
the investment properties that are measured at fair

value.

Assets
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss
- Listed equity
securities
- Commodity swap
contracts

Liabilities
Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
- Commodity swap
contracts

BE

BAFEERRS
IR B EE
- EWRAE S

-EmEHEN

&
BOAFEZERRRZ
IR B EE

-AmEHEN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

3.3 AFEMGE(E)

TREJIAREN-F—=£+=
A=+ —BUAFENENEER
B8 - AKESRAENENRE
AT EHE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& ER E= Wz
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BET T BET T
1,416 - - 1,416

- 556 - 556

1,416 556 — 1,972

- 2,496 - 2,496

The following table presents the Group’s assets that

are measured at fair value at 31 December 2012.

Assets
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss
— Listed equity
securities

BE
BV EEBER
51| 69 81 75 B

— IR ES

Level 1
E—R
HK$'000
PEHETTT

700

FREFAKER =T ——F+=
A=+—BUATFEHENEE -

Level 2
B
HK$'000
BT T

Level 3
E=H
HK$'000
BT

Total
ik
HK$'000
BT

700




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2
during the year.

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes
for similar instruments.

o Other techniques, such as discounted
cash flow analysis, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

3.3

DFEM-E ()

REEDBZE—RRE_FZME
BER -

(a)

(b)

FE—Re@TA

EEEMESEEZEMITA
ZRFEDRREARRL
MGHRENE - WREAR
HRBEMUERZ NS - &
HE BN EXEH
BRERBEHEBEREERE
R ARFHERRE
NFRAERNEE ME B
BERG  MZMSRRE
Bt AKEMFMBEE
PTRAMSHRERRITERE -
ZETRBE—MR -

FE-Re@HTA

VIHETREMSERE SR
TRAMSIRSITETR)
ZRFERBEHEERME
E o ZEHERMURAR
EERTHESHAESRD
BT - BYERREMGR
M IRFE IR B & (K - IR A F
EFfE-—BIANMEBEEAXN
WAEDAERES A&
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ERBEAUERMIGEIEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments in level 3
The following table presents the changes in
level 3 instruments for the year ended 31

December 2012.

Contingent consideration at fair value

3.3 AFEMGE(E)
(c) FE=#FKz@mTAH
TRENHEZ_ZFT——F

+—A=+—BIFEEZE
=M ITEEF -

BEAFEAEZHIRRE

2012

HK$'000

BT

Opening balance FRER 71,998

Losses recognised in profit or loss RIEEERERZEE (686)

Settlement #“HE (71,312)

Closing balance FREEER -
Total losses for the year included in FAEELRE

profit or loss (686)

There is no transfers of financial assets into or
out of level 3.

Changes in fair value of contingent
consideration are recognised in “fair value
losses on other financial assets” in the
consolidated income statement.

VEABEERE=RBA
I -

AR B2 AT EEHREG
ABIEH[ KB AR
DTSR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are addressed below.

(@)  Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment, in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note
2.8. At 31 December 2012, the recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal.

An impairment charge of approximately
HK$394,030,000 arose in the mineral
resources CGU during the course of the 2012
year, resulting in the carrying amount of the
CGU being written down to its recoverable
amount.

(b)  Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights
have been determined based on value in use
calculations, taking into account latest market
information and past experience. These
calculations and valuations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

HEMAE & RIS AR - LREEE
REBEMETHERRETE BREAR
BATHERAEMNB RAREMHNE
Al e

41 BRSHABERER

AEBEARRIELEEMRR - PI
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1R B AT i B AR R o 40
T o

@) BEHEGE

AEERBERHF2.8E5
HRSFEREELTEER
BETAHR - RZT—=F
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Bz lE € BEREA
FEREERAERE
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BESELEVNKREEE
WORZE T W B & 28 @ REL
75#394,030,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(©)

(d)

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is
determined by using valuation technique.
Details of the judgement and assumptions
have been disclosed in Note 8.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland
China and Hong Kong. Significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of
the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions
in the periods in which such determination are
made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to
certain temporary differences and tax losses
are recognised as management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where
the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets
and income tax in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.

4.1

e EE RERR(E)

(c)

(d)

REYFNFIE

AR AR A
RITEEE o 2B BRI
BAM S -

Fr ¢ B RAEAL BT {37

AEBEFEETEREER
MR EEEHARGS
BREMNERRENER
B FBEELERAE - &
—REBBREF BHEXR
5 Mat 8 A K B & R
BEBEIEERN - ik
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RENESEAR - LEER
1R B I FEE HE
FRSTR AR PRSI BEAS

EEEER/ARKARTRE
ERMEN  SERZEK
BERARMNA - BRZE
RrEERBIBNELEMSHR
BESQWRER - ERHABR
BRIRRGAE  ZZ82€
EREAEENHEATER
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4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s

accounting policies

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as investment property. In making its judgement,
the Group considers whether the property
generates cash flows largely independently of the
other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied
properties generate cash flows that are attributable
not only to property but also to other assets used in
the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions can be sold separately
(or leased out separately under a finance lease),
the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions cannot be sold separately, the
property is accounted for as investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is applied
in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as
investment property. The Group considers each
property separately in making its judgement.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=
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The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the board of directors of the Company. The directors
review the Group's internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of profit/(loss) before
income tax for the year. The information provided to the
directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group is organised into four major operating units: (i)
steel trading; (ii) steel processing; (iii) mineral resources;
(iv) commercial property; and (v) other segment
comprises, principally, management services business.

Turnover recognised during the year is as follows:

Sale of goods HE
Rental income e U A
Service income AR 7S WA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

TRLERRECHEERARAES
B EFEFEARBNAMRE - LA
[BEENDEER - EEBFIERIEE

BERE T AT -

EERBAFERMEBHAAN, (&
B)RFERENHNEE - HEFER
ENERENES VB RREREN
TAB—H -

HE S (DMENT  GiVBEZR : (iv)
BMEFMWE : RVWEEIHEBEER
FEE T RTS o

AEEHEOEEZLEEMANX (i)
(
©

RERERZEXBAOD

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T AT

4,466,188 4,844,364

59,987 50,182
22,000 21,778

4,548,175 4,916,324




The segment results for the year ended 31 December

2013 are as follows:

Total segment sales
Inter-segment sales

Sales to external customers

Operating profit/(loss) before
below items

Expenses on proposed disposal
of subsidiaries

Fair value gains on investment
properties

Fair value gains on financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Fair value losses on derivative
financial instruments

Operating profit/(loss)
Finance costs
Share of profits of associates

Segment results

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

BETIBEP

At MURR AR
B/ (B%)
BRLEMBAALY

RENFLATERE

BRATERBRETR
WHBEEZATHE
ki

fTEEMIAZATA
B

#2581/ (BR)
BERK
EBERARA
pEE

b

FRYE
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BHE—_ZT—=F+-_A=+—RHIEE

B D ERRAAMT

Steel Steel Mineral ~ Commercial
trading  processing  resources  property Others  Unallocated Group
REE7  WENI  WEER HERME -4 AR &
HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
EBTn  EBTn  E%Tn BETn BEfn BEfn AMTn
4,206,471 259,117 - 59,987 22,068 - 4508243
- - - - (68) - (68)
4,206,471 259,717 - 59,987 22,000 - 4588175
9,355 (3.470) (14,720) 41,767 6,613 (29,969) 9,576
- - (1.829) - - - (1,829)
- - - 84,632 - - 84,632
4,082 12 - - - 15 4,909
- - = = - (8,031) (8,031)
13,437 (3,358) (16,549) 126,399 6,613 (37,285) 89,257
(22,475) (1,215) (9,055) (10,806) - (520) (44,071)
- - - - - 799 799
(9,038) (4,573) (25,604) 115,593 6,613 (37,006) 45,985
(26,474)

19,511



The segment results for the year ended 31 December

2012 are as follows:

Total segment sales
Inter-segment sales

Sales to external customers

Operating (loss)/profit before
below items

Fair value gains on investment
properties

Fair value (osses)/gains on
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Share aption expenses

Operating (loss)/profit

Finance costs

Fair value losses on other
financial assets

Impairment losses on goodwil

Impairment losses on an associate

Share of losses of associates

Segment results

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

=
yer>
i

Stz DRF

= >
DEF DEr
OfF 255

=
Iom

HETIDEP

At MURR AR
(B#)/&A
RENFATE
ki
BATEEARRIR
HHEELATE
(BR)/ k&
BRESH

22 (5R)/ &8
EEHHAE
AVEBR
ERAE
BeLwEE
HiEBEARER

pEE
b

ERBR
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B BRRME

BE_T——F+_A=+—HILFE

D EEEMT

Steel Steel Mineral  Commercial

trading  processing  resources property Others  Unallocated Group
HEg5 HEMI  BEAR BEREME Hy AR £H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Aetn  A%Tn BT BT BETr RETr BT
4,535,111 313,415 - 50,182 23,865 - 492573
(4,162) - - - (2,087) - (6,249)
4,530,949 313,415 = 50,182 21,718 - 491634
(38,301) (7,294) (21,916) 33,120 6,012 (30,291) (58,670)
- - - 49,060 - - 49,060
(239) - - - - 3,102 2,863
- - - - - (266) (266)
(38,540) (7,294) (21,916) 82,180 6,012 (27,455) (7,013
(27,607) (2,655) (12,080) (9.412) - (1,553) (53,307)
- - - - - (686) (686)
- - (394,030 - - - (394,030
- - - - - (2,237) (2,237)
= = = = = (521) (521)
(66,147) (9.949)  (428,026) 72,768 6,012 (32,450 (457,794)
(14)
(457,808)

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third

parties at the prevailing market prices.

DHEEHENERRH 2 EEDH2RE

R &

FTE=ZHEZTHERETE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

Segment results represent the profit/(loss) earned by each
segment without allocation of unallocated corporate
expenses including directors’ salaries, share of profits/
(losses) of associates, impairment losses on an associate,
fair value losses on other financial assets and share option
expenses.

Other segment information

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2013 and depreciation, amortisation and additions to
non-current assets for the year ended 31 December 2013
are as follows:

DEEERAZ D BBMBEF, (B
B)MYETEBERSD HEZ&%E%&
ETEREEFE  EMERA
M, (BR) - BERRRE - ,H\*EJWZ
BEAVEBEBRBRES S

R-FE—=F+_A=+—HHDHE
?WEJ AEBE-_ZE—=%1+_AH
=t HILEFENTE  #HRIERE
MEVEEWMT :

Steel Steel Mineral ~ Commercial
trading  processing  resources  property Others  Unallocated Group
WEE7  BENI  BEEF GEEME =17 I 58
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
AT BETn  AMTn  B%Tn AT B%Tn AT
Assets EE 1,265,771 145,963 636,059 1,076,995 5,993 242,989 3,373,770
Liabilties BE 576,538 105332 231,710 225,035 23595 369353 1,531,563
Depreciation hE 1,850 3,043 997 636 1,045 1,567 9,138
Amortisation B - 156 6,993 4 - - 7,190
Additions to non-current assets ~ ERIERHEE U2 9 824 11,014 2,030 80 14,199




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

Other segment information (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2012 and depreciation, amortisation and additions to
non-current assets for the year ended 31 December 2012

HEsBER(E)

R-E——F+_-_HA=+—HHDE

EMEENRRE

2T —

—F+=A

=+ BLEFENFE  BHRIERFE

are as follows: MENEEMT :
Steel Steel Mineral ~ Commercial

trading  processing  resources property Others  Unallocated Group
D MEmnT BEAR HERME iy AR ]
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
BETT BETT BETT AETTL BETT BETT AETT
Assets EE 1,357,471 185,881 623,451 937,715 5,489 294682 3,404,689
Liabilities Bf 639,077 138 420 287,881 225613 26,672 344,049 1,661,712
Depreciation hE 1910 4,357 1,243 631 1,626 1,563 11,330
Amortisation B - 156 7,724 40 - - 7.920
Additions to non-current assets  ERFERHEE 74 183 202 8,663 23 - 9,812

Segment assets exclude club debentures, derivative
financial instruments, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, deferred income tax assets,
investments in associates, income tax refundable, assets
held for sale and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred income tax liabilities,
income tax payable, derivative financial instruments,
corporate borrowings and other unallocated head office
and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.

DHEEY TNBRERES  TEER
THE BAVEEBERIIRNTHE
E EEMEREE BMERRKRE
AR EIFREN FHEEEREEARD
ERFRIREEEE  AELEENE
BEAEHE -

DHEBEY TNBRELEMSHASB &
MAEHR  TEERMIE - EEERR
HEARANERBERRAIRERAE  HEk
BEUNEETAEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

Geographical information ih @& R}
The Group’s business segments operate in four main AREBNERDBAZERAAERE » £
geographical areas, even though they are managed on a BIE DA [ AL o

worldwide basis.

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Turnover (by location of customers) EEH(RERMHEDE
— Asia (other than Mainland China and — N (T EEFRE R
Hong Kong) BE) 1,844,053 1,492,432
— Mainland China — A 5] 1,236,685 1,237,841
— Europe — B 803,512 990,354
- Hong Kong — BB 404,049 596,012
— Others —Hv 259,876 599,685
4,548,175 4,916,324
Non-current assets ERBEE
— Mainland China — A ] 1,614,786 1,483,688
- Hong Kong — BB 68,161 70,550
— Europe — &M 319 883
— Others —Hv 7 84
1,683,273 1,555,205
The non-current assets information above is based on the N EIERBEEREEMERE S -
location of assets and excludes club debentures, deferred BrEEefEEs BEMSHEEK
income tax assets and investments in associates. Bt N B E o
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, the BE_Z——F#Kr-_FT—=F+=-A
Group did not have any single significant customer with =+—HIEFE WRBE-—FREF

the transaction value above 10% of the external sales. RIS E(EAREE ZINBEEE10% A E -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use
rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and
their net book amounts are analysed as follows:

Outside Hong Kong, held on:
Leases of between 10 to 50 years

7R FER B 30 % 005 B MY M 2
EENLBRER  REEEFEST
T

Group
|
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T PEHETIT
EEBLAINEE -
TEATFHNEE 10,525 10,722

Leasehold land and land use rights with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$5,818,000 as at
31 December 2013 (2012: HK$5,983,000) were pledged
to secure against certain of the Group’s bank borrowings

(see Note 23).

Movement of the leasehold land and land use rights

during the year is as follows:

At 1 January

Currency translation differences

Amortisation of prepaid operating
lease payments

At 31 December

R—H—8
EREN 8
BN EERENE
B

R+=-—A=+—8”

R—E—=%+=-_A=+—8 "
ELHMETHERRERAEEENS
¥ 5818,000 L (=& — ZF : B
5,983,000t ) E &b K BIR{TE SKIE
(R HEE23) -

& + 3 Ko £ b {5 B A B F A ) B & 4
T

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT

10,722 11,046
175 44
(372) (368)
10,525 10,722




At 1 January 2012
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2012
Opening net book amount
Currency translation differences
Additions

Disposals
Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2012

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

Leasehold
land in
Hong Kong
under Leasehold Furniture
long-term improve- and Motor Construction
finance lease  Buildings ments  Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
NER
RERE fig
et BF BFRE Y e g5 fRIE 2z
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AeTr AT A%Tn  ABTn BT BT BT BT
i S
A 82,582 67,223 11,213 69,370 12,832 13,921 318924 576,065
2:E (22,762)  (31,835) (8,007)  (56,680) (8,943) (8,227) - (136,454)
GEEFE 59,820 35,388 3,206 12,690 3,889 5,694 318,924 439,611
HE-Z-—512f
=t-RIFE
BOREFE 59820 35388 3,206 12,690 3,889 5694 318924 4395611
ERERZS - 86 4 42 2 19 1,802 1974
R = = - - 991 145 245 1381
i - - - - (63) (183) - (246)
e (1,243) (2,235) (1,555) (3,236) (1,538) (1,523) - (11,330)
BeRERE 58577 33239 1,655 9,496 3,300 4152 300971 431,390
e Sy g
=+-A
KA 82,582 67,345 11,250 69,437 12,393 13,008 320971 576,986
ZiHTE (24,005 (34,106) (9,595)  (59,941) (9,093) (8,856) - (145,59)
REFE 58,577 33,239 1,655 9,496 3,300 4152 320971 431390




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

Leasehold
land in
Hong Kong
under
long-term Leasehold Furniture
finance improve- and Motor Construction
lease  Buildings ments  Machinery equipment  vehicles in progress Total
RER
RERE il
HELH BT BTE# KE BARRE g hEIR e
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
E¥Tn  ERTn  ABTn  ABTn  RMTn  BMTn  BEfn  BETR
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-E—=FT_A
ZT-ALLEE
Opening net book amount HRAEE 58,517 33,239 1,655 9,496 3,300 4,152 320,971 431,390
Currency translation differences EH%[ER Z% - 351 25 158 66 61 9,516 10177
Additions R - - 2,045 - 381 - - 2,426
Disposals e - - (24) - (97) (320) = (441)
Depreciation charge it (1.283) (2,242) (970) (2,012) (1,530) (1,141) - (9,138)
Closing net book amount BRREFE 57,334 31,348 2,731 7,642 2,120 2,75 330487 434414
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F1-A
=1+-H
Cost B 82,582 67,852 13,150 69,716 12,410 10,573 330,487 586,830
Accumulated depreciation 2ihE (25248)  (36,504)  (10,419)  (62,074)  (10,350) (7.821) - (152,416)
Net book amount REFE 57,334 31,348 2,131 7,642 2,120 2,752 330,487 434,414

Depreciation expense of approximately HK$3,074,000
(2012: HK$4,384,000) has been charged in cost of
sales, HK$1,850,000 (2012: HK$1,911,000) in selling
and distribution expenses and HK$4,214,000 (2012:
HK$5,035,000) in general and administrative expenses.

At 31 December 2013, leasehold land in Hong Kong
under long-term finance lease and buildings with
carrying amount of approximately HK$57,334,000
(2012: HK$58,577,000) and HK$28,467,000 (2012:
HK$30,165,000), respectively, were pledged to secure
against certain of the Group’s bank borrowings (see Note
23).

WEEREPRABE3,074,000c (==
— 4 : 7B14,384,0007T ) 5t AHE K
e - B #1,850,0007T (Z B — 4 ¢
PE%1,911,0007T) st ASHE R DHEE
B MiB#4,214,000c(ZE——4F ¢
75 #5,035,0007T) BIGT A —R R ITHR &
)Eﬁ °

R-ZE—=F+_A=+—"H  REB
EHRERE L MEFIREED B4
75 #57,334,000( T ——4F : BK
58,577,000t ) K &% 28,467,000 (=
T — — 4 : B#30,165,0007T) B A =P
PEBIRITEREE IR (R HIEE23) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

Motor vehicles include the following amounts where the
Group is a lessee under finance leases:

AEBEERBEREABETNEREE
TSR

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T ST T

Cost — capitalised finance leases RA—EARERERE 2,047 3,070

Accumulated depreciation 2t E (1,368) (1,389)
Net book amount IR R E 679 1,681

The Group leases certain motor vehicles under non-
cancellable finance lease agreements. The lease terms are
between 5 and 6 years, and ownership of the assets lie
within the Group.

AEBERBAAHMEZBMERES O
EHEER BB AAERFREEM
BRETIASKEMEA -

Group
=8
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At fair value BAFE
Opening balance at 1 January R— A —BFE4&ER 883,520 819,655
Additions gV 10,974 8,474
Fair value gains (included in “other income  AF{EW S (BIETE
and net gains”) (Note 27) [EeA R F
2] (F1aE27) 84,632 49,060
Currency translation differences EHEY =% 28,655 6,331
Closing balance at 31 December Rt+t-_A=+—H&EX
LR 1,007,781 883,520

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment

properties

Rental income
Direct operating expenses from property
that generated rental income

RREMENBETHEINEH

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T ST

e WA 59,987 50,182
EAHSWANMEZ

BERZEEEA (5.815) (6,380)

54,172 43,802




The Group's interests in investment properties at their net
book amounts are analysed as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

REBAEREMENESZEIRDFE
DT -

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Mainland China ]
— held on leases of between 10 and — A TERTFEHY
50 years HE 1,007,781 883,520

At 31 December 2013, investment properties
of approximately HK$985,086,000 (2012:
HK$879,310,000) were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s banking facilities (see Note 23).

An independent valuation of the Group's investment
properties was performed by the valuer, Vigers Appraisal
and Consulting Limited, to determine the fair value
of the investment properties as at 31 December 2012
and 2013. The revaluation gains or losses is included in
“other income and net gains” in the consolidated income
statement. The following table analyses the investment

R-ZT—=F+_A=+—H ' &EY
24 15985,086,000 T ( —F — — 4 -
75 1#879,310,0007T) B FikiF » fEAXR
EEZRITREEF R (RKIE23) »

AEBMRE YA ARSI EE
FEEB AR A RETEEE - A
RER—TB——FR_FT—=%F+—H4
= +—HHNAFE - EFRKREHEER
reEnmk [HelA R FEE |
B TRIZMMERZEZDMARFEF=
ZIEEME -

properties carried at fair value, by valuation method.

Fair value hierarchy N ED R

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2013 using

R=F—=5+=-A=+—H

AT EFTERATEA
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BEEEER HE a8z A&
JEB™ S LK EENEXR EBHNEKX
HREE-R) BAEE-R BAEE=R)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T BT T
Description Wt
Recurring fair value REMNTESE

measurements
Investment properties: B
— Shopping malls — Mainland — 3% — R &

China - - 1,007,781




The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

ERESMHHBRNB R “%@(L)\&L
HAFELH  AEEHBRERE R
HERZFH

— W B_MRE =B ZERA
if*ﬁ%@é.ﬂ@)

ATFEFERATTEHEESNE R
AE(E=H)

Shopping malls
in Mainland China

R EINE S
HK$'000
BT
Opening balance FHEER 883,520
Additions iE. ,4\ 10,974
Net gains from fair value adjustment NHERBWREFEE 84,632
Currency translation differences ffﬁ%[ﬂ%%ﬁ 28,655
Closing balance FREG 1,007,781
Total gains for the year included in profit or EBREAR [Ee AR5
loss for assets held at the end of the year, MERMFAMNEENF AW
under “other income and net gains” 84,632
Change in unrealised gains for the year EREANRERTIFENEE
included in profit or loss for assets held RERNRER 2 =2
at the end of the year 84,632

Valuation process of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31
December 2013 by independent professionally qualified
valuers who hold a recognised relevant professional
qualification and have recent experience in the locations
and segments of the investment properties valued. For all
investment properties, their current use equates to the
highest and best use.

The management will review the valuation performed by
the independent valuers, including:

o verifies all major inputs to the independent
valuation report;

o assess property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report; and

o holds discussions with the independent valuer.

REELERRE

R-E-—=F+-_A=+—HEXEERK
EMERBEEABERERARNE
VEBEAEBRFGEELEE - &S
MEARBIREMENLE XD G
MEER - FIB AERABEREMEN
EREFRN R RRERRE -

EEESENHBLAEMETNMG
& 8

s BBEBUMERSTHAEIEER
ANfE

o BEFEERE LB LR
EOEH R

o BBV FTHAEDA R o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

Valuation techniques

For shopping malls in Mainland China, the valuation was
determined using the income capitalisation approach
(term and reversionary method) which was based on
capitalisation of net rental income derived from the
existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary
income potential of the properties.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Description

i

Shopping malls
- Mainland
China
H%—HE

Fair value at
31 December
2013
R=B—=%
+=g=1-A
WP
(HK$'000)
(BT T)

1,007,781

Valuation
technique

fhER

Income

capitalisation

approach (term
and reversionary

method)

WABROA(BE

FHRERE)

Unobservable
inputs

FABR
BAE

Term yield
AHE =

Reversionary yield

ERMREE

Market rent
mHHe

fhER

R ENESNEEDRABEAER
E(BEFHRRERZE)  HRERE
BHONFHEHSBAERE - AFFADE
BEMERRE -

AERBERMLELS -

FBELAVEMERATTHERESNE
R AENER (BE=R)

Range of Relationship of
unobservable unobservable
inputs inputs to fair value
TUBEERAE FABREAER
HEE ATENEE

6.0% - 7.5% The higher the term
yield, the lower
the fair value.

HRK RS
AFEBIE o

6.5% - 8.0% The higher the
reversionary yield,
the lower the fair value.

EEKEEER
AFEBIE -

RMBO.05 per square
meter per month to
RMB10.5 per square
meter per month

SRARK0.05T,/
FHAEEA
AR®10.57,/FAAK

The higher the market
rent, the higher
the fair value.
mEEeHE
NFEHS o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

At 1 January 2012

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December
2012

Opening net book amount

Currency translation
differences

Additions

Impairment charge

Amortisation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2012

Cost
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December
2013

Opening net book amount

Currency translation
differences

Additions

Amortisation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2013
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book amount

Group
%8
Domain
names,
Exploration  trademark
and and
Mining  evaluation computer
Goodwill right assets software Total
BER 8% BE
meE RRE FEEE REK&H @t
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
BB BB BT BT BT
R=ZE——%—H—H
3% 391,111 199,709 17,647 193 608,660
SR BERAE
= (20,416) = (193) (20,609)
IREFE 391,111 179,293 17,647 = 588,051
BE-_T-—_—F#+-R
=t+—HIEE
HIREFE 391,111 179,293 17,647 = 588,051
EEERZE
2,919 1,31 131 = 4,362
R = = 202 = 202
BE (394,030) = = = (394,030)
g = (7,552) = = (7,552)
HAIR T F{E - 173,053 17,980 - 191,033
RZE——%+=R
=t+—H
5% 394,030 201,199 17,980 193 613,402
S E A
(394,030) (28,146) = (193) (422,369)
IREFE - 173,053 17,980 = 191,033
BE2-F-—=F1+-H
=t+—HItFE
HIREFE = 173,053 17,980 = 191,033
EEER =5
= 5,231 553 = 5,784
N = 744 55 = 799
i = (6,818) = = (6,818)
HAIR T FE = 172,210 18,588 = 190,798
R-ZE—=%+—-R
==
5% 406,154 208,134 18,588 193 633,069
S EERAE
(406,154) (35,924) = (193)  (442,271)
IREFE = 172,210 18,588 = 190,798




Amortisation of the mining right of approximately
HK$6,818,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: HK$7,552,000) is included in general and
administrative expenses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of mining right over its estimated
useful life of 30 years. The licence period of the mining
right held by the Group is 2 years and 2 months (2012: 5
years). In the opinion of the directors, the Group will be
able to renew the mining right with relevant government
authorities continuously at minimal charges.

Impairment tests for goodwill

For the purpose of impairment reviews, goodwill set out
above is allocated to the cash generating unit (CGU)
related to mineral resources operation.

At 31 December 2012, the recoverable amount of the
CGU was determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal. In arriving the fair value less costs of disposal
of the CGU, management has taken reference to the
sale and purchase agreement entered into between
Burwill Minerals Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and an independent third party. An
impairment charge of approximately HK$394,030,000
was recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

HEe—_Z—=f+_A=+—HI#&
& - BRAEE RS 4075 %6,818,0007T (=
T — —4F : B ¥7,552,0007T) B B FER
— M EITEER -

RIS HRAEQERE AT AL
RER0FERRAD #AE - AEEE
BZREEERMAMFERMEA (=
T—_%F:0%F) EFAR/LKER
BEARKIEKE R — B BT E 2 5K
1o

B R E AR

ATRERA  AERRZEESHE
NEMBEEREB CREELEN -

R-ZTE——F+_-_A=+—H BeE
A BB 2 AT Bl & B8 Ty iR H A FER D
ENAETE  BEERBEREXSR
AR —HARREZENREBAR @ #
—RBILE =T FTR] LAY 8H & AN B8 B 1
ERETRSEASBM2ATEREE
A o REREBEm Kk ERERNEERE
#)75#394,030,0007T ©

(a) MBRRARE

Company
AT

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Unlisted shares, at cost IE W - HRAKAS 42,415 42,415
Capital contributions relating E AR A+ 2 M

to share-based payment BEMNEE 10,410 10,410

52,825 52,825

Investments in Group undertakings are recorded
at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration
paid.

AR E AT AR ER AT
EfEARANIRE ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

MEBARKRE(E)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a)

R-E—=Ff+-A=+—Hzx
EZMBREMT :

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2013:

Place of
incorporation/operations

Issued and

Percentage of
equity interest/
voting capital
attributable

Name and kind of legal entity  fully paid capital to the Group Principal activities
AEEREL
AR BERTR B/ BREE
&8 RAERAL BHRRA REBDE FEEBME
Directly held:
BERA
Burwill and Company Hong Kong limited liability ~ HK$50,000,000 100% Investment holding
Limited company and £50,000 REER
BRERELERRA 75#50,000,0007T
50,0005 8
Burwill HK Portfolio Limited  The British Virgin Islands us$2 100% Investment holding
limited liability company 237t REER
RBRAHEBEREELT
Burwill China Portfolio The British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% Investment holding
Limited limited liability company ~ 1%7T REER
EERAHEEREEAR
Smart Task Limited The British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% Investment holding
limited liability company 137t REER
EBEAHSBEREELA
Indirectly held:
&R
Burwill (China) Limited Hong Kong limited liability ~ HK$200 100% Investment holding
ER(FE) BB AT company BH2007T REER
BEBRREARA
Burwill Commercial Holdings  Hong Kong limited liability ~ HK$1 100% Investment holding
Limited company LAV REER
EREFHESRAR ERRREARA
Burwill Minerals Limited Hong Kong limited liability ~ HK$1 100% Investment holding
EREEERAR company BT REER
BEBAREARA

Burwill Resources Limited

BERMHEEARAR

Hong Kong limited liability
company
BARRALRA

HK$ 1,000,000
#11,000,0007T

100%

Steel trading
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(a)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

1

Indirectly held: (continued)
RS : (8)

Burwill Resources Europe,
S.A.

Burwill Steel Company
Limited

Burwill Steel Pipes Limited
BRMEBRAR

Burwill Times Industrial
Limited
ERRREXEBRAA

Burwill Warehousing

Place of
incorporation/operations
and kind of legal entity

AR BE Y
KRR

Spain limited liability
company

AT AEREEAR

The British Virgin Islands
limited liability company

RERAEBARAMART

Hong Kong limited liability
company

BERREARA

Hong Kong limited liability
company

BEARELERRA

Mainland China

(Shanghai) Limited (Note (i))

BERAf(L8)BRAR
((PFEEG))

Dongguan Hingwah Metals
Factory Limited (Note (i)

RERERSHARADA
(B =E()

Hing Wah Metals Factory
Limited
HELEHMAR AT

Mainland China
e

Mainland China
FE

Hong Kong limited liability
company

BABREEAR

~

(a

Issued and
fully paid capital

BRTR
ERRRA

EUR62,000

62,0008 7T

US$13
13%7L

HK$80,000,000
75%:80,000,0007C

HK$2
BT

US$1,200,000
1,200,000% 7T

RMB10,000,000

AE#10,000,0007C

HK$100,500,000
##100,500,0007T

HK$5,000,000
#5,000,0007C

MEBARKRE(E)

Percentage of
equity interest/
voting capital
attributable

to the Group
AEERE L
Bi/ BREE
REBA

70%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

Steel trading

Investment holding

REZK

Steel processing

MEmT

Investment holding

REER

Steel trading
HEZESH

Steel processing
ME T

Steel processing

M mT

Investment holding

REZK



Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

1

Indirectly held: (continued)
HEREE : (8)

Hillot Limited
Tai Xin Minerals Limited

EERERFARNDT
(Note (i)) (Fft&E()

KB EEERAR
(Note (i)) (KFzE()

KERBBEXARATF
(Note (i)) (H&E())

Yangzhou Times Industrial
Limited (Note (ii))

BMBREXAERAR
(B E(i)

Yinmain Industrial Limited

EREXARAR

Place of
incorporation/operations
and kind of legal entity

AR e
KRR

Hong Kong limited liability
company

BERERALAR

The British Virgin Islands
limited liability company

RREZHBERREAF

Mainland China
e

Mainland China
e

Mainland China
FE

Mainland China
I

Hong Kong limited liability
company

BEARALARA

~

(a

Issued and
fully paid capital

BERTR
ERRRA

HK$500,000
75 #500,0007T

US$164
164% T

HK$50,000,000
#50,000,0007T

US$39,000,000
39,000,000 7T

RMB37,793,500
AK#37,793,5007T

RMB61,000,000
AEK#61,000,0007T

HK$2
2T

Percentage of
equity interest/
voting capital
attributable

to the Group
AEERE L
Bi/ AREE
REBA

100%

70.12%

70.12%

70.12%

70.12%

69%

100%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

MEBARKRE(E)

Principal activities

FRRBMHE

Securities investment
BHRE

Investment holding

RERK
Investment holding
REEKR

Mineral resources

BEEAR

Mineral resources

BEEAR

Commercial property

BEEHE

Property holding
EEERYES
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(a)

(b)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

(i) Burwill Warehousing (Shanghai) Limited, e £l &
S8R A7R], Dongguan Hingwah Metals Factory Limited,
EERBBWEERAGE, KEBRLEXBRAA and X5
FEWEAR QT are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in Mainland China to be operated for 50 years
up to March 2050, 21 years up to December 2028, 24 years
up to July 2017, 30 years up to December 2037, 20 years
up to September 2029 and 10 years up to December 2017,
respectively.

(i) Yangzhou Times Industrial Limited is a sino-foreign equity
joint venture established in Mainland China to be operated
for 40 years up to April 2039.

The above list includes only those subsidiaries
which, in the opinion of the directors, are material
to the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital
in issue at any time during the year ended 31
December 2013.

Balances with subsidiaries

Except for the amounts due from subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$940,403,000
(2012: HK$1,254,922,000) which are unsecured,
non-interesting bearing and not repayable within
one year, all the outstanding balances with
subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

(a)

(b)

MEARRE(HE)
MR -

(i) ERA#(LEE)ARAR - Rem
BB S BRAR - REREAEK
BRI - EEREEFARAA -
HrRESHEARARRKGZERE
EXERARH /NP BEKLZINEGE
Bh¥ EXHH/FNARTFEE=ZT
AEF=R - Z+—FE=T-)\F
TR ZtTHFEFE-T—tF+
A - =+&==-F=tF+=A
“HFE_T_AFARARTEE=
T—+&+=8-

(i)  BNERERFRAFZNABEKL
ZHINEERE  BEM/M+ER
—E=NFEA -

AEMIEBREER A AKE
EBEUZHMBAR - EFR R M
FIEEMBRARZHE  HE<
RIBBNITE

KBE=B-—=£+-A=1-A
L RN - HBARLR
BEMDEEEAR -

BB D RAER

BB ARARARRIRDAEBE
940,403,000 L (= ZF— —F : /&
#1,254,922,00070 ) KT - &
FIEFPNER—FRNER - IEE
v HE B AR AR EER - 25

BRREREER
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Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests for the
period is approximately HK$321,816,000 (2012:
HK$290,946,000), of which approximately
HK$215,173,000 (2012: HK$182,969,000) is
for Yangzhou Times Industrial Limited and its

subsidiaries (the “Yangzhou Group”).

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries

with material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial
information for the Yangzhou Group that has non-
controlling interests that are material to the Group.

Non-controlling interests percentage
Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Revenue

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income allocated
to non-controlling interests

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

IR ER A DL
MEBE
FEREEE
mEBBE
FREBAE

Wz
FERM
HezmEEA
EHRALRE

(c)

pal e S el g Fa:y)

e PN L

B IR SRR

ERFERER

= RN ) - i B
321,816,0007C( = FE— =4 : B
290,946,0007T) * EFRHMERE
EXBFRARRENB AR ([HIMNE
B ) (5#4)78%215,173,00070( ==
— 4 #1182,969,0007T) °

118 2 ATRE L BT 75 B BREE A FE 1
R s
BRFERESTHAEBASE
1 2 45 M 5 18 B B 755 B R B 2 4
T o

Yangzhou Group

BNEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
31% 31%
125,077 113,506
1,027,610 901,286
(95.891) (114,157)
(362,689) (310,413)
81,988 71,959
93,265 59,552
19,459 4,138
112,724 63,690
34,944 19,744

3,843 =
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(c) Material non-controlling interests (continued) (c) EBEARIFEERERE)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries BT/ 2 B B 7 B E B A FEHE
with material non-controlling interests (continued) Rk ()

Yangzhou Group

BNEE

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT
Net cash generated from operating EIEEEEERNFRE

activities 32,181 24,423
Net cash generated from/(used in) wEEEEES,(FTH)

investing activities HEIE S 4,835 (66,180)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEES(TA),ELE

financing activities HFIRE (9.558) 38,548

The information above is the amount before inter- ERERARR ZEEHENEEE -

company eliminations.
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(a)

Investments in associates

At 1 January

Share of profits/(losses)
of associates

Share of other comprehensive income
of associates

Dividends received

Additions

Currency translation differences

Impairment losses (Note)

Transferred to assets held for sale
(Note 19)

At 31 December

Note:

(a)

R—HA—H
FrihEt & AT &BA|,
(E518)

P NGRS
A

2 WA B

#E

BHE N =5
A EE)
EREREHEEE
(BMF5E19)

R+=—A=+—H

At 31 December 2012, the recoverable amount of Nam Wah
Precision Product (BVI) Limited which represented the fair value
less costs of disposal was less than its carrying amount. An
impairment loss of approximately HK$2,237,000 was recognised.

2H

B BRRME

BENRIRE
Group
&8
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT
72,148 97,928
799 (521)
799 281
(742) (3,395)
- 4,603
2,190 489
- (2,237)
- (25,000)
75,194 72,148
MEE

R=ZZT—=F+=A=+—H ' Nam Wah
Precision Product (BVI) Limited =] 4[] 4 %8 J5
REATEREEXAEECENIREAE ' B
TR H) S ER AR 1B 4 A8 ¥ 2,237,0007T °
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(a)

Investments in associates (continued)

Particulars of investments in associates as at 31

December 2013:

Name

#8

Indirectly held:
RERA

Masteel (Yangzhou)
Processing & Distribution
Co. Ltd.

S (HM) M T
ARAT

BN LEZHER AT

T.0.P. (Hong Kong)
Investment Company
Limited (Note)

HEb (BB REBRAR
(FfzE)

Topyield Limited (Note)
BmaER AR (M)

China Land Assets Limited
MBEEERAT

China Land Holdings
International Limited
(Note) (FffE)

HASERBRERAH

Note:

China Land Holdings International Limited directly holds 33.33%
equity interest of T.0.P. (Hong Kong) Investment Company Limited
and 33.33% equity interest of Topyield Limited as at 31 December

2013.

Particulars of
issued capital

ERITRAFFRE

Paid up capital of

US$20,000,000,

unlisted

20,000,0003 7T

L

Paid up capital of
RMB5,000,000,
unlisted

A& #5,000,0007T -

LM

Ordinary shares of HK$1

each, unlisted

TER - sl

L

Ordinary shares of HK$1

each, unlisted

TER - sl

L

Ordinary shares of HK$1

each, unlisted

Lk SBE%IT

LM

Ordinary shares of HK$1

each, unlisted

Lk - sBE%IT

LM

(a)

Country of
incorporation

B L B

Mainland China
CalE

Mainland China
R E

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong
B0

Hong Kong
&

BEQTREE)

RZE—Z=F+-HA=1+—HE=
RENRE ZFFE

fiE

Percentage of
interest

held
REREEL

29%

30%

48.33%

48.33%

45%

45%

Measurement
method
STERAE

Equity
#a

Equity
s
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

(a)

(b)

Investments in associates (continued) (a) HBEQTREE)
Aggregate information of the Group’s associates 7R & B I IEE R E A H: 4 A 5 B4R
that are not individually material: BER
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’000
BET T PEHET T
Aggregate amounts of the Group's AREE PTG E A A
share of associates LETE
Profit or loss e sk B8 799 (521)
Other comprehensive income Hez2EKA 799 281
Total comprehensive income/(expense) ZEUA (X H )#a%E 1,598 (240)
Balances with associates (b) ML BAERR
Except for the amount due from an associate BREE RRRRADBBE
amounting to approximately HK$2,464,000 (2012: 2,464,000C( =T ——4F : B
HK$2,649,000) which bears interest at 10% (2012: 2,649,0007T) St FERI0E(ZF
10%) per annum, all the outstanding balances with ——4F :10E) 0 A H T g
associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing and NRIERGEER 2FEERE

repayable on demand. SREFE ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

(a)

Group

At 31 December 2013

Assets as per consolidated

balance sheet

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial
instruments

Bills and accounts receivable

Deposits and other receivables

Due from associates

Due from a related company
Cash and bank balances

At 31 December 2013

Liabilities as per consolidated

balance sheet

Derivative financial
instruments

Borrowings (excluding
finance lease liabilities)
Finance lease liabilities
Due to a related company
Bills and accounts payable

Other payables and accruals

BRAHEEBER
510 OB 75 B
TEERT A

eI IR K

& 45 0 TH

wa MEERYGK
NIV N
[EEF NIV
e RIRTTHEER

TEERTA
ER(TEERE

MEHEAE
NP YNCIE ]
JE S SR 45 K% R A
1RIE
HERIRE N
FEETE M

(a) =
Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables profit or loss Total
BRAFE
EiBEETIR
BERREBR WEE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BET T
- 1,416 1,416
- 556 556
1,130,252 - 1,130,252
78,294 - 78,294
33,328 - 33,328
1,751 - 1,751
164,992 - 164,992
1,408,617 1,972 1,410,589
Other
Liabilities financial
at fair value liabilities at
through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
RATE RS A
EBERBIR ABRHY
MmeE HeemaE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
2,496 - 2,496
- 918,084 918,084
- 909 909
- 23,315 23,315
- 177,073 177,073
= 141,764 141,764
2,496 1,261,145 1,263,641




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

(a) Group (continued) (a) EE(#E)
Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables profit or loss Total
BRFE
MZE——4F FEiBERIIR
At 31 December 2012 +=—RB=+—8H E R EBGR MEE FEEE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT
Assets as per consolidated  {ZiGRABEAMEBE
balance sheet K& EE
Financial assets at fair value & AF(EHEBEZ
through profit or loss HI IR B BT S & - 700 700
Bills and accounts receivable JEUSZE1E &
JE W T8 1,189,374 = 1,189,374
Deposits and other receivables &4 & £ & fEUGK 61,070 = 61,070
Due from associates i NETDE Y 29,808 = 29,808
Due from a related company F@:&E Q2 5] /K K 1,751 - 1,751
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHE R 229,497 = 229,497
1,511,500 700 1,512,200
Liabilities at
amortised cost
TR SHAK AR AR
At 31 December 2012 R-BE——F+-A=+—H OR=NE
HK$'000
ST T

Liabilities as per consolidated XA EEBBRNEE
balance sheet

Borrowings (excluding ER(TeEmE

finance lease liabilities) HEA®E) 999,334
Finance lease liabilities MEMREAE 1,757
Due to a related company U EENGIE ] 23,315
Bills and accounts payable B E R K e AR IE 239,617
Other payables and accruals EEEMIRE K EHE A 143,428

—

,407,451



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

(b)

Company

At 31 December 2013

Assets as per balance sheet

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Deposits and other
receivables

Due from subsidiaries

Cash and bank balances

At 31 December 2013

Liabilities as per balance
sheet

Due to subsidiaries
Other payables and accruals

(b) AT
Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables profit or loss Total
BA¥EE
R-ZZB—=F EBERIR
+=BA=+—H B & EWFR HWEE b
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BET T BET T
REEAER
K& =
BAVEEBIER
PR A BF 15 & B - 968 968
e RETREGK
64 - 64
[ INEENCIDNE N 1,446,362 - 1,446,362
R RIBITER 695 - 695
1,447,121 968 1,448,089
Liabilities at
amortised cost
12 8 85 B S A bR
R-B-—=5+=HA=+—H =R
HK$'000
BET T
REEABRNARE
RETEB A RIFIE 18,199
HERMNIRIERETER 1,905

20,104



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

(b)

Company (continued)

At 31 December 2012

Assets as per balance sheet

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Deposits and other
receivables

Due from subsidiaries

Cash and bank balances

At 31 December 2012

Liabilities as per balance
sheet

Due to subsidiaries
Other payables and accruals

(b) 2FE)

Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables profit or loss Total
ZATE
RZE—_4%F FHiBEETIR
+=A=+—8 B e BR B & E 4azE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
REEREBRX
k= V=3
BAFESRER
PR A BF 75 & B2 - 239 239
Re RETEYGK
64 = 64
Ll PNCIDE S 1,953,135 - 1,953,135
& RIRITHEER 31,124 - 31,124
1,984,323 239 1,984,562
Liabilities at
amortised cost
TR SH R AR AR
RZE——F+=-A=+—H OR=NE
HK$'000
BT T
REEABRNAR
R B R BFRIE 27,208
HE RNIRIE R EE A 2,046

29,254



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

Raw materials JR##
Work-in-progress & m
Finished goods BURK
Consumables JHFE M

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately
HK$4,241,161,000 (2012: HK$4,663,908,000).

Group
£E

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
23,988 43,039
6,194 4,386
42,656 54,591
4,418 5,567
77,256 107,583

GFERATERAEE B AHEERKA
R &5 HET A8 %4,241,161,0007T (=
T — 4 #5%4,663,908,0007T) °

Group Company
£H AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Listed equity securities RS
- Hong Kong — BB 1,098 497 968 239
— Overseas — 84N 318 203 - =
Market value of listed FTRAES 2 A
equity securities 1,416 700 968 239

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded in “other income and
net gains” in the consolidated income statement (see
Note 27).

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their
current bid prices in an active market.

BERAVPEEBBERIIGNMBEEND
FEZY  THRABaRAHEHERA
K Mesi B8R 1P oItk (R EE27) -

i A 2 T (B TR S R AR BB
152 B 1 EH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

Group
58
2013 2012
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =K BE A&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT
Commodity swap PR A G %Y

contracts 556 2,496 — —
Derivatives holding for trading purpose are classified as VEEERSITET A S EAREEE

current assets or liabilities. BE -

The notional principal amounts of outstanding
commodity swap contracts at 31 December 2013 were
approximately HK$37,274,000 (2012: Nil).

R-ZZE—=%+-_FA=+—8  KETT
HEmE AN EEEREeN BB
37,274,000 ( —ZF——4 : ) o

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the fair value of the derivatives assets in the
consolidated balance sheet.

R E B HHEE R RN RAAE BT
AEEABRNITEEEN LA TE -

Group Company
£H AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT
Bills and accounts receivable FEUTZZ4E K fE Uk 1R 18
(Note (a)) (Bt7E@a)) 1,130,252 1,189,374 = -
Loan to a director BEEEXR
(Note 39(d)) (FfF5E39(d)) 817 - = =
Deposits, prepayments & - BERK
and other receivables Hemlax 198,047 187,879 447 104
198,864 187,879 447 104
Less: non-current portion & : FERBIER(D
Loan to a director BEER
and prepayments NSELNEN (39,755) (38,540) = =
Current portion mEEn 159,109 149,339 447 104
1,289,361 1,338,713 447 104




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

Notes:

(o)

Bt
The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods for sale (a) AEFLRABEERALTFETE=THZ
of goods ranging from 30 days to 180 days. Rentals in respect of —BNATHEZERY HEWEZESKA
leased properties are payable by the tenants on a monthly basis. PR AXLT -
Ageing analysis of bills and accounts receivable is as follows: U B KRR IR R D ATAO T ¢
Group
&5
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Within three months =@AR 961,348 931,826
Over three months but within six months HBiE={EA m A BE N EA 168,857 257,548
Over six months but within twelve months BN EAm A BET=@A 47 =
1,130,252 1,189,374
There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to FEU SRR | R YR IR IEIF M B K SR B B R
bills and accounts receivable as the Group has a large number of R ARAEEEREZER  BHHRS
customers, internationally dispersed. b o
As of 31 December 2013, accounts receivable of approximately by RZTE—=F+=—A=+—80  afERR
HK$387,050,000 (2012: HK$471,291,000) were past due but not 1B /9 FE U1 1R 78 49 7% %5 387,050,000 L (= &
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for — =4 : B471,291,0007T) © BERIEH
whom there is no significant financial difficulty and based on past REZELSBEANVBRENBLES - BIR
experience, the overdue amounts can be recovered. The ageing BEMAER - AT LAY EIE BAFRIE b F R
analysis of these accounts receivable is as follows: IRIERIRER D ATZAT -
Group
£8
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within three months =@EAR 231,529 218,975
Over three months but within six months BB =1E A m A E S E A 155,521 252,316
387,050 471,291
As of 31 December 2013, none of the accounts receivable were () WEEKRER-"Z—=F+=_A=+—H

impaired and provided for (2012: Nil).

BE(ZS—=F &)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

Notes: (continued)

(d)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts receivable
are denominated in the following currencies:

BEE - (4)

(d)  ANEE A MR R B % U IR IR A IR 8 2 B8 A
THEEREN :

Group
58
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
uss$ E 1,027,719 1,036,920
RMB AR¥ 50,173 52,330
HK$ BT 37,119 21,277
EUR BT 15,238 78,844
Other HEE 3 3
1,130,252 1,189,374
Movements on the Group’s allowance for impairment of accounts () EUWIREREREBEZIHNT :
receivable are as follows:
Group
£8
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT ok e
At 1 January R—A—H - -
Provision for accounts receivable impairment JE L5 T B 105 3,465
Accounts receivable written off during TG AR A R U ] 1 8
the year as uncollectible FEYIRIE (105) (3,465)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H - -

The creation and release of provision for impaired accounts
receivable have been included in general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged
to the allowance account are generally written off, when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within bills, accounts and other receivables do
not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying amounts of each class of receivable mentioned above. The
Group does not hold any collateral as security.

HERERKRBERFEORINBERNE B
ERABRaRT —RETRERA - ££4F
RPN BEE— R B E TR AU
SN B RIS o

R - EUIRIE R CRKSARNEE
DENREREEREEE

EREBSR  FERABNRSERAERS
P sERERIREE - ARETRAE
e RERROER R -



The outstanding balances represent amounts due from/
to a subsidiary of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited,
a company in which Mr. Chan Shing and Ms. Lau
Ting, the directors of the Company have beneficial
interests. The outstanding balances with the related
company are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The maximum outstanding balance due from

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

EEEH AR NERIERAR A RE
THWEB AR ZHE » MAR R E =R
STERBIEZLETRZA R A @A
o BURAE N R FUE A EEE
BB NBRBENREE - FRNEERAXR
BERSTELB%1,751,000 (==
— % : ##1,751,0007T) °

a related company during the year was approximately
HK$1,751,000 (2012: HK$1,751,000).

Group Company
3L AF
2013 2012 2013 2012

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT  ABTT B¥Tr BRI

Cash at banks and on hand $R{T R EFHS 142,335 204,832 695 31,124
Short-term bank deposits 42 HRER1T1F 50 22,657 24,665 = =
164,992 229,497 695 31,124

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 0.48% (2012: 0.78%); these deposits have an
average maturity of 114 days (2012: 79 days).

At 31 December 2013, the Group had certain short-
term bank deposits of approximately HK$22,657,000
(2012: HK$24,665,000) pledged with the banks (see Note
38(d)).

At 31 December 2013, cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$51,554,000 (2012: HK$40,614,000)
are denominated in RMB and placed with banks in
Mainland China. The remittance of these funds out
of Mainland China is subject to the exchange control
restrictions imposed by the Chinese Government.

As at 31 December 2012, assets held for sale represented
20% equity investments held for sale in Nam Wah
Precision Product (BVI) Limited (“Nam Wah"), an
associate of the Company, after the management
approved the disposal plan of such equity investment.
On 28 December 2012, Burwill and Company Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a share repurchase agreement with Nam Wah on
the repurchase of the 20% equity investments in Nam
Wah at a consideration of HK$25,000,000 (the “Share
Repurchase”). The Share Repurchase was completed
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

HHRTERNERFE A50.48E (=
T——F:0.788) : ZEHFEANFHE
HIEA114AKR(ZZE—ZF : 79K) °

R-ZE—=F+-A=+—H  £8F
20150 52 BRSR 1T 17 sk 4978 % 22,657,0007T
(ZZ——4F : #124,665,0007T ) #
TiR7T (R HIFE38(d)) °

R-ZE—=%F+-_FA=+—H ' 8%
N R1T 458424078 # 51,554,000 (==
— 4 : B140,614,00070) 2 AA R
MAEBBEN T FRRPREZIRIT o #®
FRELZEESSESRRPREBNE
He 2 SN B i FRAG o

BHE-_Z-——F+-A=+—08 " &8
BEMENHERTRETE FHEE
EAASEFEA 2B & A FNam Wah
Precision Product (BVI) Limited ([ Nam
Wah])20% IR ARIEE - RZT—=4F
+=A=+/\H  Burwill and Company
Limited * —fAARRZ2ENKBAA -
A Nam Wah %8 5] — 17 [@ B Nam Wah
20% AT ERN RN EFEHE  REA
P& 125,000,000 ([BRMA R D) © B 5
OEER_ZE—=F+=_A=+—81
FRNTTRK o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

At 1 January 2012 N E—
Repurchase of shares (Note (b))

—F—H—H
o] B A 17 (BT & (b))

At 31 December 2012 and RZE—=F
1 January 2013 TZA=+—HBK
_f—:¢ A—H
Issue of shares (Note (c)) TR (KT EE(C))
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+"A
=+—H

Notes:

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 6,800 million
shares (2012: 6,800 million shares) with a nominal value of HK$0.1
per share (2012: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

On 30 August 2012, the Company acquired, through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Burwill Minerals Limited (“BML"), the entirety
of the 685,700,000 shares (the “Repurchase Shares”) of the
Company allotted and issued in the name of Tai Xin Holdings
Limited and charged in favour of BML in accordance with the terms
of the share pledge dated 31 March 2010 and the share purchase
agreement dated 5 November 2009 (as amended by the two
supplemental agreements dated 24 December 2009 and 31 March
2010 respectively) (the “Share Repurchase”). No consideration is
required to be paid to Tai Xin Holdings Limited in order to effect
the Share Repurchase. The Share Repurchase was completed on
30 August 2012, and following completion, the Repurchase Shares
were cancelled in accordance with the Companies Act.

Pursuant to the placing agreement dated 17 April 2013 (the
“Placing Agreement”), the Company allotted and issued an
aggregate of 397,052,000 new ordinary shares of the Company
on 26 April 2013 to at least six independent investors at a price
of HK$0.122 each under the general mandate. The closing price
per share of the Company on 17 April 2013, being the date of
the Placing Agreement, as quoted on the Stock Exchange was
HK$0.122. Net proceeds of approximately HK$48 million raised
was used as general working capital.

B e

B BRRME

Number of
ordinary Nominal
shares value
ZEREA H{E
(thousands) HK$’000
(F3H) BET T
4,875,360 487,536
(685,700) (68,570)
4,189,660 418,966
397,052 39,705
4,586,712 458,671
TEBRNEEHE LT ABE(ZTE—=

F: 68 BREEA/BKIT(ZF
——F : BREK0.1T) - IAEBTRM

BEEZHHR
RZZE——FNA=+H KARAREAH

AT TE=A=t+—BZBRHEMLB
HAE-T ::jLETL ARARZRGDE BiHE
(ERM R A_TTNF+_A=+MA
kT —ZE= ﬂer B 2 M%7t
FHERT) &R - BB EWB R A ERREE
BRAR([EREXE])BACKEERETT
Tai Xin Holdings Limited3f & f ¥ 2 g% %
2#0685,700,000% ([ @R AD 1) AN R E A
B (TRHEE]) - BHEELEARTai Xin
Holdings LimitedZ HE(ARAE o i B FER
—E——FENA=1+B%EMK - BExKE - B
B EIRBERERRDE T IAH -

BE—_ZT—=FNA+tRAZEEHZ%
(IREH#])  ARAER=ZZE—=4FN
AZ+7B  BE—RMERE - hzlﬁﬁ
BON22 T EBREERETAARAH
397,052,000 /% 37 £ 38 A% A% 1 K/J\x%é%
VIREE MN-T—=FMA++H (A
& % B HA) Bk A AT AT R 0 AR A B AR 9 M i
BAERBE0.1227T - A5 RIBFHELB
4,800 THIE—MREEESD °



At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
6 June 2002, shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “2002 Option
Scheme”). Under the 2002 Option Scheme, the Company
may grant options to employees (including executive
directors or non-executive directors) of the Company and
its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time excluding for
this purpose shares issued on exercise of options. The
subscription price will be determined by the directors,
and will not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
the trading day of granting the options; (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of granting the options; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares. The 2002 Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing
on 6 June 2002, after which period no further options will
be granted or accepted but the provisions of the 2002
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all
other respects.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
8 June 2011, shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “2011 Option
Scheme”). Under the 2011 Option Scheme, the Company
may grant options to employees (including executive
directors or non-executive directors) of the Company and
its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time excluding for
this purpose shares issued on exercise of options. The
subscription price will be determined by the directors,
and will not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on
the trading day of granting the options; (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of granting the options; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares. The 2011 Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing
on 8 June 2011, after which period no further options will
be granted or accepted but the provisions of the 2011
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all
other respects. No share option was granted, forfeited,
exercised or expired under the 2011 Option Scheme since
its adoption on 8 June 2011.
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RRRARZZZ_FRARNBRITZR
RIBFAES L ESECRIERABRE
AE([ T _FBREE]) - RIZ
T _FEREE ARBAERT
AR REMBARZ ET(BERT
EZYRTES)BREUARBAA
Azt BEERREZERARFD
BITRAZ30% (Pt ARTTE B I
METHORD) - BRZREERES
RE - URADR - (VERLBRES
BB FER 2 MTE  (VERLE
P A R A E R 5 B A B 32 P B R 2 F
BRTHE: RMiEHEE=EZ28S
o —_TE_FHEREAIZANRHR
—ET_FXANBER  AHItTE
HEH NS HR O R AIBRE
T —FREBRETEZHEXERE
ENERBDEE T RENRIER -

ARBR—_F——FNANBRITZR
RIBFAE L BSERIERABRE
AE([ZF——FBRETE]) - RIZ
—E——FRREE - ARFART
AR REMBARZ B T(BFERTT
EXZYRTES) BREARBAA
Azt BEERREZERARFD
BITRAZ30% (Nt ARETTE B I
MBETHORD)  BRIRBEERES
RE - URTLR - (VERLBRES
BB FER M TE - (VERLE
P A Al B R 5 B A B A2 P B R 2 F
BRTHE: RMiEHEE=EZ2E8S
o T —FBEREAIZARHR
—E——HXAN\BEF  BHt+E
HEH S ER O R ETAIBRE -
T ——FRBRERE 2R XEH
CEIESDEETRBMAORIER - B
—E—FXANBEEAN_FT——
FRBEEE  BERBRERL W
& 1TEXIE -
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Movements in the number of share options outstanding BARITIE 2 BB ESE R EA BN
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as EHTEEEEHAT
follows:
2013 2012
Average Average
exercise exercise
price in price in
HKS per HK$ per
share Options share Options
option (thousands) option  (thousands)
BERE TR E

FIIITEE BEE CFOTEE B
(&) (F&H) (B7T) (F&h)

At 1 January R—HA—H 0.50 80,200 0.50 85,660
Forfeited 281 - - 0.50 (5,460)
Expired [ et 0.50 (80,200) = =
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H - - 0.50 80,200
At 31 December 2012, all of the 80,200,000 outstanding RZEBE—Z—F+ZA=1T—08 ' 285
options were exercisable. All of the 80,200,000 share 17 2 80,200,000 5 & #E B B 7] F
options were expired during the year ended 31 December T -BHEZZT—=F+=-HA=+—H
2013. IEFE + 2 8080,200,000 8 4 B & 5

5 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

Share options outstanding at the end of the year had the
following expiry date and exercise price:

RERBAITEZ BREZ A RIT
EEWT :

Exercise price

in HKS per Options
share option (thousands)
BERETEE B
Expiry date == (BT) (F=&t)
2013 2012
2002 Option Scheme ZE——FERETE
5 October 2013 —T—=%+tHEH 0.50 - 80,200

The vesting period of the options is from the date of the
grant until the commencement of the exercisable period.

The Group recognised a share option expenses of
approximately HK$266,000 for the year ended 31
December 2012.

BREZEBEHHRLEAEETES
FImE R L -

AEBRBE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—
BIEFERREREIHOBE
266,0007T ©
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Group
52
Captal Share-based
Share CGoptal ~ Contrbuted ~ redemption ~ Revluation ~~ Translation ~ compensation Retained
premium Tesene surplus Tesere fesene  adjustments fesene profits Totd
BAOE RN

RiaR  ERBR  HAER BEOBGEE  ARER  CRERR  RARA 5
HEO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKS'000  HK§'000
BT BT BT ERTT m%T AT BRTr Akt A

At 1 January 2012 RZE-2%-7-A 731,612 (50,025) 99,172 12,037 11213 149,001 13,287 531,538 1497835
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - - (465,055 (465,055)
Share of otfer comprehensive FrAEE A AIER2EMA

income of associates - - - - - 281 - - 281
Currency translation EYERRE

differences

- Group -£R - - - - - 3,905 - - 3,905

- Associates -BENT - - - - - 489 - - 489
Repurchase of shares BEEkA (4656) - - - - - - - (4.656)
Emplojees share option ~ EEBREH

scheme:

- value of employee senvices - EERHE(E = = - - - - 266 - 266

At 31 December 2012 RE-—F+-A=1-H 126,956 50,029) 99,172 12,037 11,213 153,676 13,553 06,483 1,033,065




At 1 January 2013

Loss for the year

Share of other comprehensive
income of associates

Currency translation
differences
- Group
- Associates

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Release upon lapse of share
options

Acquistion of additional
Interests in a subsidiary

At 31 December 2013

T/ﬁ

R—%

FRBR
FARE AL 2ANA

=&-f-H

EMEREE

-£8
-BE0A

ki
BUEE
REREXAAOR

WENBLTNENER

R-F-2512A=1-R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

B BRRME

Group
)
Capital Share-based
Share Capital ~ Contributed  redemption  Revaluation  Translation compensation ~ Retained
premium reserve surplus feserve reserve  adjustments reserve profits Total
BAER HRARA
RbEE  EAEE  2AER B EfBE AEER  CRRRE  REER g
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BT ERTn BT EMTn ERTx BT BT ERTn AR
76%6  (50025)  %91m 12,037 1213 153,676 13,553 66,483 1,033,065
- - - - - - - (3,667) (3,667)
- - - - - 19 - - 799
- - - - - 243 - - 243
- - - - - 2,19 - - 2,19
8,735 - - - - - - - 8,735
(280) - - - - - - - (280)
- - - - - - (135%3) 13,553 -
- (1,555) - - - - - - (1,555)
735,411 (51,580) %9112 12,037 11213 179,098 - 76369 1,061,720
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Company
id
Capital Share-based
Share  redemption  Contributed compensation Retained

premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total

EXER HBRHXH
Rt 1 BABR  ZRERE REEH L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT AETT AETT AETT BT BT
At 1 January 2012 R-E-—%-F-H 731,612 12,037 228,004 13,287 625,833 1,610,773
Loss for the year EEEE = = = = (17,086) (17,086)
Repurchase of shares IR (4,656) - - - - (4,656)

Employees share option scheme: & B iE:2] :

- value of employee services - EERK(EE - - - 266 - 266
At 31 December 2012 RZE——%+-f=1-H 726,956 12,037 228,004 13,553 608,747 1,589,297
At 1 January 2013 R=%-Z%-F-H 726,956 12,037 228,004 13,553 608,747 1,589,297
Loss for the year 5EBE - - - (575,140) (575,140)
Issue of shares ki 8,735 - - - 8,735
Share issue expenses e A (280) = - - (280)
Release upon lapse of share ~ NERERIE R &

options - - (13,553) 13,553 -
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=£+-A=1-H 735,411 12,037 228,004 - 47,160 1,022,612

Contributed surplus represents (i) the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued and the
book value of the underlying net assets of subsidiaries
acquired; and (ii) transfer from share premium account. It
can be utilised for issuance of bonus shares or for capital
redemption upon repurchase of shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders subject to the
condition that a company shall not declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

BABRERT() B An 1T 2 HE B2 AP
BRRFEERAEZZR  R(i)H
Pt EIREA - SIARSRA] HEITA
Pk m A B EE AIEEE A -

REBRE-NN\—FRFDE GAR
SRR DIRAEBIR - BN D IKRE - A
AIRBEEE DI BEBR(NVEEE 2 &

BERZEN - KRR TEEE M
B D IR ARER o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

The Company’s reserves (excluding retained profits)
as at 31 December 2013 available for distribution to
shareholders were represented by the contributed
surplus of approximately HK$228,004,000 (2012:
HK$228,004,000).

R-ZE—=F+—-"F=+—H  a#ts
RKEBRRZARRAFEB(TEEREA
R ) AN B 478 228,004,000 7T
—E— 4 : #B#228,004,0007T) °

Group
58
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ok e
Non-current IEm B
Bank borrowings RITEXR 164,103 191,297
Other loans from non-controlling B /8 1 ) FEERR AR R
shareholders of subsidiaries METER 59,936 59,722
Finance lease liabilities MEHERE 446 1,220
224,485 252,239
Current RED
Bank overdrafts (Note 35(b)) #8178 X (MI5E35(b)) 4 5,758
Bank borrowings RITEXR 674,041 732,557
Other loans HEEX 20,000 10,000
Finance lease liabilities MmEHEEEaE 463 537
694,508 748,852
Total borrowings HER 918,993 1,001,091




Secured borrowings are as follows:

Bank borrowings RITER
Finance lease liabilities

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$541,217,000
(2012: HK$601,003,000) were secured by certain
leasehold land and land use rights, buildings, investment
properties, pledged bank deposits and interest of shares
in certain subsidiaries (see Notes 6, 7, 8 and 18). Finance
lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the
leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default.

Other loans from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and
not repayable within one year.

Certain banking facilities of the Group are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group's
balance sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’'s management of liquidity risk are
set out in Note 3.1(c). As at 31 December 2012 and
2013, none of the covenants relating to the drawn down
facilities had been breached.

MEHERE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

BEFEFWT -
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
541,217 601,003
909 1,757
542,126 602,760

RITE XA B 541,217,000 (=&
— — 4 : B %601,003,0007T) A =B 1D
HELH R THERE  1BF  18EYD
¥ EHBRITER RN B R R R
DYEEA(RHE6 -7 - 8/18) - @&
HESGEERLEEER BATEED
REEEEMNERSREBLHEA -

B AR FHERBRMNEEERL EE
- RFMERTER-FAEE -

AEBEBHBITEEEIBITEHASE
ETEEEBHEBEB@AMNRLYFTHER
ZELNEARNESHEEERNNEER
ZHE e BEAKEEERZY - QBRI
EREEARERFEE - AEE ST H
ERZEZHNETER - ~AEEEE
MENE © R b A — DB E MR
B3I R-E——FR-_FT—=F+—
A=+—H AEEVEEREHEEIR
MEEMRY -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & Bf 5 R &R M 5E
At 31 December 2012 and 2013, the Group’s borrowings RZE—ZFR_ZT—=%+=AH
were repayable as follows: == KEI%ME’JE 2150 0
T
Bank borrowings and overdrafts Other loans
BTERREX HEER
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T BT
Within one year —&FR 674,045 738,315 20,000 10,000
Between one and two years —Z-2FR 21,795 58,213 - -
Between two and five years —ZRFR 71,795 44,776 59,936 59,722
Over five years HBBRE 70,513 88,308 - -
838,148 929,612 79,936 69,722
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Gross finance lease liabilities MEHEARE
— minimum lease payments: *E—Tfifﬂ H/TA :
Not later than one year NiEBBE—F 498 613
Later than one year and not later than five A —FETBBAF
years 456 1,289
954 1,902
Future finance charges on finance leases BEMHE 2 KRR E A (45) (145)
Present value of finance lease liabilities BMEHEAECREAE 909 1,757
The present value of finance lease liabilities FIEMHEBE ZIRE
is as follows: AT
Not later than one year NHBB—F 463 537
Later than one year and not later than BR—FENBRRSE
five years 446 1,220
909 1,757




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

The effective interest rates at the end of the reporting RIBEHERNERF RO T :
period are as follows:

2013 2012
US$ RMB EUR HK$ US§ RMB EUR  HK§ Other
Xt AR® ®EBr #xn Xt ARE B AT HE

Bank borrowings RITER 30% 7.2% 25% 2.5% 33% 7.1% 40% 25% -
Finance lease liabilities BEMAEEE - - - 6.7% - - - 51% 5.0%
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are SEERNIEESBATIER, RS
denominated in the following currencies: fiz:
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
uss$ e 522,438 565,812
RMB AR #E 207,175 211,292
HK$ BT 158,044 164,842
EUR BT 31,336 58,737
Other HE - 408
918,993 1,001,091
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account RIEFFSTIR B < S BAEEENT -
is as follows:
Group
58
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T PEHETTT
At 1 January Rn—H—H (156,578) (157,856)
Currency translation differences BEE N ERE (6,247) (3,237)
Consolidated income statement EEREETR
(charge)/credit (30BR),/#E R
(Note 31) (M4EE31) (20,161) 4,515

At 31 December R+—A=+—H (182,986) (156,578)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

The movement in deferred income tax assets and FRNREFFEHEERBEZEFHOR
liabilities during the year, without taking into BEZEER—HBFMEZ &)
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same T:

tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Accelerated tax Investment
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation properties Others Total
EREFEHAR MERERE LS 1y L

201 2012 201 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BRTn ARt ARTR AN AMTR  EETr  BRTn ERTn

At 1 January ®=A-H = (85 (140,919)  (127,653) (67,753) (63,3200  (208,672)  (191,058)
Credited/(Charged) to the S ARRR
consolidated income EE/ (R

statement - 97 (21,158) (12,265 (2,946) (2,103 (24104)  (14271)
Currengy translation EHEREE
differences - (12) (4,672) (1,001) (1,955) (2,330 (6,627) (3383)
At 31 December RTZA=1-A = - (166,749)  (140,919) (72,654) (67,753)  (239,403)  (208,672)
Decelerated tax
Deferred income tax assets depreciation Tax losses Others Total
BREfEHEE AERANE it -4 #E

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BRTR  BRTR  EMTn  ARTR  #RTn ARTn BMTR BT

At 1 January itz et 1,120 1,840 50,865 31,253 109 109 52,094 33,202
Credited/(Charged) tothe  EABHR
consolidated income #R/(0R)

statement 364 (700) 3,579 19,486 - - 3,943 18,786
Currengy translation EHEREE
differences (133) (20) 510 126 3 - 380 106

At 31 December RtZA=1-H 1,351 1,120 54,954 50,865 112 109 56,417 52,094




Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet
as assets/liabilities not realisable/due within one year:

Deferred income tax assets REPTSTHEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHRAE

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carry forwards to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax
losses of approximately HK$630,035,000 (2012:
HK$603,698,000), which certain amounts are subject
to approval from the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department. Tax losses of PRC subsidiaries have an
expiry period of five years, while tax losses of Hong Kong
subsidiaries have no expiry date. Tax losses can be carried
forward to offset future taxable income.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprise
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5-10%.
The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and associates
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

EEAERMNAKREBERAEERRA
MG BERE - METAEHRYRE—
FIERHRE - AR KRS E E IR
SV AEEREE - Bt AEE KR
MR TIHSHERABEERBRAMN
THAR—FRER FHMZEE AE
SR -

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T PR T T

44,979 42,620
(227,965) (199,198)
(182,986) (156,578)

EIEFTIS & EE TH E E AR B B 75 Al 25 1)
BMARERTOR T FE ML AE 2
TRIBIERER - AEE B RERBIBL B
¥ 630,035,000C (=T — —4F : B
603,698,000 ) ' HA IO HEHFE B
B E o B A S 2 BB A A A
HiEEmBART  MBEBKILZHEB
ANEMFEWER A - B8 4w
5 R SR FE ER B UL o

REBFHECEMFTE  RHBEAM
I Z INBERE R ERIEREET K
ZRBABKI0%EMB - bt ER
“EEN\F-A-BRARALBAR-ZF
ELFE+ A=+ —BUARZEN - i
REAMEINRREE B EEERET
MBS RA) - RIBUE Z TR K Al gE
CHEAB RAKEME BRAREXS
5-10% ° Eitt - AEBEARERFERA
WAL Z %2 BB X B KBt & A R s R
—EEN\F-A-BRELEZENMIK
T2 IR BBMTRHH -



At 31 December 2013, no deferred income tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries and
associates established in Mainland China. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates in Mainland
China for which deferred income tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately HK$13,127,000
at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$16,840,000).

The ageing analysis of bills and accounts payable is as
follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

R-ZE—=F+_-_A=+—8  HEH
7R B A R B A b A 7 2 B R B R B
N A HY AR BE H 2RI e A 2 TR AN AL
RIEMRIEFMEHR o M AERELE
RaEzrBEREHEA R KEE A
ARETE A CERERER-S
—=—F+ A=+ —HAHEHNABE
13,127,000 (= — —4F : {1 BB
16,840,0007T) °

FENRIE R EMIREREDTAT

Within three months =EANR

Over three months but within six months HBE=1{EHm
B E A

Over six months but within twelve months 8@ 7~ 18 A

Over twelve months

BB+ =18 A
BE+—@A

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts
payable are denominated in the following currencies:

Us$ =7
RMB AR
EUR BT
Others HEE

Group
£H

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
159,819 224,436
44 125
655 124
16,555 14,932
177,073 239,617

AEENEMNREREMRENIKRES

BUATIIER BB

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT
152,564 177,375
21,535 23,348
2,959 38,868
15 26
177,073 239617




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

At 1 January R—HA—H
Currency translation differences EHIEH =58
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—8H

The provision for land restoration and environmental
costs is in relation to the estimated costs of complying
with the Group’s obligations for land reclamation. These
costs are expected to be incurred on mine closure, which
are based on current mineral reserve estimates.

Group
£H

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
4,258 4,226
131 32
4,389 4,258

THERMRERABRGEERAEE
HEEMEEEBKA 2 o LEIEK
ADRFEREBEERFHBEET - LT
HiIE R RARAR E L o

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Fair value gains/(losses) on: NEEWE(EE)
— financial assets at fair value through —ZAFEBBERY
profit or loss IRA TS & = 4,909 2,863
— derivative financial instruments —TESRTA (8,031) -
Interest income on: MEBUTA -
- bank deposits —RITER 424 1,087
— other receivables —H e R 1,171 1,544
— due from an associate — BN RR K 198 22
Dividend income &% S WA 17 80
Fair value gains on investment properties WEMERN D FE RS 84,632 49,060
Gains/(Losses) on disposal of property, HEWE  HWERREZ
plant and equipment Wz, (&) 9 (65)
Others B 5,545 4,167

88,874 58,758




Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses and general and administrative expenses are

analysed as follows:

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
— owned assets
— assets held under finance leases
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease
payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Operating lease rentals
Employee benefit expense (including
directors’ emoluments) (Note 29)
Provision for impairment of accounts
receivable
Provision for inventories
Net exchange (gains)/losses
Auditors’ remuneration

Wages and salaries

Share options granted to directors and
employees

Pension costs — defined contribution plans
(Note (a))

Staff welfare

ERN G
e

—BEEE
—REHERE
N2 EHERIEEH

A E Y
LEHERS
RERIFAX (BEES
<) (FF5E29)

JREE Lt R TEL UL (B HBS

FERE
B 5% (Wzs),EiE
2 Gilllka

HeIE&
RTEZREEERE

BIRAAR — FE R KRG8
(MiEE(a))
ETEF
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FIESHEMR AR - SHERDHERAM—R
RITBRERANERINAT

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
BB T BT T

8,626 10,562

512 768
372 368
6,818 7,552
6,122 5,801
86,632 93,435
105 3,465
320 =
(1,470) 3,520

1,100 1,050

2013 2012
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT BETIT

77,808 83,728
- 266
5,478 5,755
3,346 3,686
86,632 93,435
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Note:

(a)

Pensions - defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme (the
“Original Scheme”), which is managed by independently
administered funds. The Group’s monthly contributions are based
on 5% of employees’ monthly salaries. The employees are entitled
to receive 100% of the Group’s contribution and the accrued
interest thereon upon retirement or leaving the Group after
completing ten years of service or at a reduced scale of 30% to
90% after completing three to nine years of services.

For the Hong Kong employees employed after 1 December
2000, the Group has arranged for these employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. Prior to 1 June 2012, both the employer’s and the
employees’ contributions are subject to a maximum of HK$1,000
per month per employee. From 1 June 2012, both the employer’s
and the employees’ contributions are subject to a maximum of
HK$1,250 per month per employee.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China. The Group contributes to retirement
plans at rates of approximately 14% to 22% of the basic salaries
of its employees in Mainland China, and has no further obligations
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits.
The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group's
contributions to the aforementioned schemes was approximately
HK$5,478,000 (2012: HK$5,755,000) without deduction of
forfeited contributions of the Original Scheme.

hE:

(a)

BARE - SRE MRS

AEBRBERERHZERBUESER
Z A EHRFRKE BI([REHE]]) - AEEE
AZHFIRER AFHS%E  RBRIKK
sROR T FRBRBERAEE  ESHHFE
WOER 22 B A B O (R SR R BB AT AR, - SRR =
Z N F RS B RTH230% 290 % Lt FIUER o

AEEBA-TTTF A —HEBEABES
BEZH2ERHEATESTE([RESET
2] —ERBIZEATENREERGT
2 - RIFRESHE - AEEREEESA
BIRBARGIEATESEANEE  8AKE
BHEHS%HK - R=_FT—=—F/A—H
Al BEEREENESEHAESATEES
HRE®1,000t c H=FE—=—FNA—H
B EEXEREENSEHTERATEEER
& AA%1,2507T °

BRETEEFIRE  AEBERHETEESS
HEREHHRARGE - AREREESE
RFEMN14% 222 % ER o BRFR D -
AEBBAAERLCERRARS N RERRK
BRENOEE - BREPNRARFTE AT
NEKEENZHRELRE -

RER - REBEY Filsr 8l EHERE
B4 BHS5,478,000c (=T —=F : B
5,755,0007C ) + 3 £ 40 BR R 5T 81 /)R U 4

Eo
A
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Note: (continued)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the
year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:

Name of director

BESHE

Executive directors
Mr. CHAN Shing
(Note (i)
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung
Mr. YANG Dawei
Ms. LAU Ting
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan,
Virginia
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam
Mr. SHAM Kai Man
Mr. YIN Mark
(Note (ii))

Independent non-

executive directors

Mr. CUI Shu Ming

Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai

Mr. CHIANG Bun
(Note (iii))

HITES
BRIy S AR

(B aE()
EOEREAE
BAREE
izt
E M+

HERELE

SR ELE

FULSEAE
(Y aE (i)

BIUFHTES

EERLLE
EBELLE
PREFIE S 4
B L
CBRF=EGii))

Bt - ()

(b) EEREREEEHH
HE-T—=F+-_A=+—"BLFE &
BEERITBAHNFTHOT

Employer’s
Salaries, contribution
allowances Discretionary to pension
Fees and benefits bonuses scheme Total
e Rl BRIRET &I
we RER MRS EEMHK B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T BT T BETT BYETT
= 5,897 - 245 6,142
- 2,713 — 125 2,838
- 607 - - 607
- 4,636 - 214 4,850
- 1,915 - 88 2,003
- 1,859 - 86 1,945
- 1,859 100 86 2,045
- 1,669 - 66 1,735
363 - - - 363
300 - - - 300
300 - - - 300
144 - - - 144
1,107 21,155 100 910 23,272
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Note: (continued)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the
year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below:

Bt - ()

(b) EEREREZEEFM(E)

HE-_T—=-F+-A=+—HLFE ' &

HEERTRAENFMOT

Employer’s Employee
Salaries, contribution share
allowances  Discretionary to pension option
Name of director Fees and benefits bonuses scheme benefits Total
5e 8 RINGHEIN EERER
S e RAa BiE#RS EEHK 1B Foe]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. CHAN Shing BRsh 2 - 5,859 500 242 54 6,655
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung BEEREE - 2,616 300 120 54 3,090
Mr. YANG Dawei BAREEE - 600 - - 22 622
Ms. LAU Ting 2Eat - 4,602 450 212 54 5318
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia ~ Efilffiz+ - 1,847 180 85 54 2,166
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam PERTE - 1,792 280 83 54 2,209
Mr. SHAM Kai Man BREE - 1,792 320 83 54 2,249
Mr. YIN Mark Fi kA - 1,618 150 64 54 1,886
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLE 363 - - - 22 385
Mr. HUANG Shenglan ERELE 300 - - - 22 322
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai PR BRI 4 A4 300 - - _ _ 300
Mr. CHIANG Bun (Note (iii)) 3 58 4 (Fft % (jii)) 4 - - _ _ 4
967 20,726 2,180 889 444 25,206
Notes: Mfsx
(i) The chief executive of the Company is Mr. CHAN Shing, (i) NANFZITRBE BRI LS - AR AT

who is also one of the executive directors of the Company.
(ii) Resigned on 12 March 2014.

(iii)  Appointed on 21 December 2012.

ZHITEEZ— o

(i) R-ZE—ME=F+_BBE -

iy RZZT—=—F+-A=+—BZfF-
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Note: (continued) MiE : (&)
(c) Five highest paid individuals (c) AuEREHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AFEEEESSFTHNAMALBFENA
Group for the year include four (2012: five) directors whose (ZZ—=F: Af)EF ' MINEFMEL
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The NERMOMARR -HE-T—=F+_
emoluments payable to the remaining one non-director, highest RA=+—BItFE AT —}EF  &o
paid individual for the year ended 31 December 2013 are as FHALTHFHENOT ¢
follows:
2013
HK$000
BT T
Salaries, allowance and benefits e R RER 1,056
Discretionary bonuses Hi5RE 1,500
Employer’s contributions to pension scheme RIRFTBIAEEHK 20
2,576
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, no payments had BE_ T —_FR-_T-=F+_A=1+—HILF
been made by the Group to the directors or the highest paid individual in B AEEHERRBAHBRHENRESSES
respect of inducement to join or compensation for loss of office, and no FATZAFIE  BEEZS &S EH A THRERR
directors or the highest paid individual waived any of the emoluments. < o
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T PEHETTT
Interest on: ME
— bank borrowings not wholly repayable —THRAFANEEHE
within five years BERIRITER 10,806 =
- bank borrowings wholly repayable —RAEFANEHEERD
within five years RITER 32,908 50,503
— other loans —HEER 285 2,689
— finance lease liabilities -mEREAE 72 115
44,071 53,307




The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda
until 2016. The Company’s subsidiaries established in
the British Virgin Islands are exempted from British Virgin
Islands income taxes. Hong Kong profits tax has been
provided at the rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profit arising in or derived from
Hong Kong for the year. Subsidiaries of the Group in
Mainland China are subject to Mainland China enterprise
income tax of 25% (2012: 25%) on their taxable income
determined according to Mainland China tax laws.
Taxation on other overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been provided
as the Group had no assessable profit arising in or derived
from Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: Nil).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

ARG RHEREREEE_Z—
F o oREBEZEHESNI 2 MBRRT
REEBRZEESH - BBHNEH
BAFEEMEENFEE B EHNER
BRI Z2165%(—F——4F : 16.5% ) &
e AEERFRZWERRAHRF
Bl (b ZEFTISH - 1R B R AT € BB
F18225% (=& — =4 : 25% )& o
Hegiar s BB RIRGTFEERE
A ANBEAREE L EEBER 2IRT
THEGFH -

HE_ZT—=Ff+-_A=+—HLHF
B EAEBTEELASFEAE BN
FERTAN  BBENERLERB
—E—F )

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ok e
Current tax: REFRIE ¢
— Mainland China taxation — R ERIE 5,981 4,543
Adjustments in respect of prior years: ARIFEFAE :
- Hong Kong profits tax —BAREH - (68)
— Mainland China taxation — R FIA 332 54
332 (14)
Deferred tax: IEEFIE -
Origination and reversal of temporary Ty = ENEE
differences I B o] 20,161 (4,515)
Income tax expense RS i it 26,474 14




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax AEBBBBRATEHRATER,(EE)Z
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise MEERBERARNARALBHRZFHE
using the tax rate of the home country of the Company as MEtE BRI =8 M ¢
follows:
2013 2012
HK$’'000 HK$’000
BET T PR T T
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BrETE R AT &R, (E518) 45,985 (457,794)
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% I %E16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) (ZZF—=%F : 16.5%)7T& 7,587 (75,536)
Effect of different taxation rates HEBERTRBE
in other countries A 8,703 1,793
Income not subject to taxation AT 2 WA (490) (470)
Expenses not deductible DRI 2 2
for taxation purposes 2,504 68,151
Unrecognised tax losses RIERTIE 9,294 45,620
Adjustments in respect of prior years VART4F 2 A% 332 (14)
Utilisation of previously FEREAREER
unrecognised tax losses = - (110)
Others e (1,456) (39,420)
Tax charge BIAX 26,474 14
The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt ERANA T BRE R NN TR
with in the financial statements of the Company to the A AESEIEZELNBES575,140,000
extent of a loss of approximately HK$575,140,000 (2012: T(=ZZE——4F : #%17,086,0007T) °

HK$17,086,000).



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

Basic and diluted BEARREE

Basic and diluted loss per share are calculated by dividing BREAGESEBEEAR ARG
the loss attributable to owners of the Company by the BAEMHEE BAFADBITETER
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue R INEFIE B E o

during the year.

2013 2012

Loss attributable to owners RAFIERFEB A

of the Company (HK$'000) FEfGEHE (B TFT) (3.667) (465,055)
Weighted average number of B BT T AR A hiE

ordinary shares in issue (thousands) FEHH(FET) 4,461,613 4,644,920
Basic and diluted loss per share FREAREEEIR

(HK cents) (AL (0.08) (10.01)
The outstanding share options during the years ended 31 %ﬁ:%—:i&:%?fzit; A
December 2012 and 2013 have an anti-dilutive effect on :+*E!UZ$W ﬁéﬁj{?ﬂﬁﬁ’g,ﬁﬁ%*@%ﬁ
the basic loss per share. BREAREBETARBEER -
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final §$%$ﬁ%@§::%ﬁ*5¢+iﬂ
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: ST HLEFERAARBRE(ZF

Nil). —F )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

(a) Cash generated from operations (a) EEELEMES
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT TT
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEAN,(BR) 19,511 (457,808)
Adjustments for: I
- Tax —HiIB 26,474 14
— Depreciation of property, — W5 - HE R
plant and equipment RETE 9,138 11,330
— Amortisation — B 5 7,190 7,920
— Goodwill impairment charge — ERE - 394,030
— Impairment losses on an associate ~ —F#& N BEE - 2,237
— (Gains)/Losses on disposal —HEME - ESENEE
of property, plant and equipment 2 (Wzs), /i (9) 65
— Share option expenses —BERE= - 266
— Fair value gains on investment —REMFEH R FE
properties g (84,632) (49,060)
— Fair value gains on financial assets — &2V (Ei% B85k
at fair value through profit or loss W EEE 2 AT E
g (4,909) (2,863)
— Fair value losses on derivative —TESRT A
financial instruments Z AT EEE 8,031 -
— Fair value losses on other —HEWBEEZRAFE
financial assets EE = 686
— Dividends received from —WEE R EER

BRI P IS EE

financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss fz 8 (17) (80)
— Interest income — F BHA (1,793) (2,653)
— Finance costs — AR 44,071 53,307
— Share of (profits)/losses of — PTG & A A
associates (&F)) &8 (799) 521
— Provision for impairment of — YR IR (B
accounts receivable B i 105 3,465
— Provision for inventories —FEEE 320 -
— Effect of foreign exchange rate —INE[EREE) 7 B
changes (576) (2,490)
22,105 (41,113)
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
— Inventories —FE 30,007 60,232
- Bills and accounts receivable — IR ZE IR K R UL IR I8 59,017 94,175
— Deposits, prepayments and other  —3i%% « AR KR
receivables H e rlk (21,299) 85,445
— Bills and accounts payable — N R R ERRIE (62,544) 11,022
— Other payables and accruals —HTPREMIRER
st E A (16,141) (920)
Cash generated from operations BEEANRES 11,145 208,841




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

(b)

(a)

(b)

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash

equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand
Short-term bank deposits

Less: Pledged bank deposits
Bank overdrafts

Capital commitments

Contracted but not provided
— Property, plant and equipment

RITMEFRS
REHIRTT R

W EIRIRTTIER
RITEX

EENEREB

W% HELERE -

Operating lease commitments — where the

Group is the lessee

At 31 December 2013, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not
later than five years

Over five years

THRE—F
— 414

BRNEERF

HBidhF

(b) RERBEEEBYERD T
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
142,335 204,832
22,657 24,665
164,992 229,497
(22,657) (24,665)
(4) (5,758)
142,331 199,074

(a) EAREIE

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
12,802

(b) EEHEAE-AEERFABAA

RZZE—=F+ZA=+—H &

EARIRA AT 2 2@ E MR AR
RN EREMRAELNT

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T AT

7,133 6,874

15,663 19,946

14,277 14,410

37,073 41,230




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

(0

(d)

(e)

Operating leases — where the Group is the (c)
lessor
At 31 December 2013, the Group had future
minimum lease payments receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:
Not later than one year BB —F
Later than one year and not BiE—F
later than five years BRBEASFE
Over five years BT F
Contingent-based rents recognised in the
consolidated income statement were approximately
HK$4,234,000 (2012: HK$2,620,000).
Financial guarantees (d)
Guarantees given to banks for BEBYEEESR
mortgage facilities granted to the RBE MR RTT
buyers of the Group’s properties EE Z =R
In the opinion of the directors, no material liabilities
will arise from the above guarantees which arose in
the ordinary course of business and the fair value
of the financial guarantees granted by the Group is
immaterial.
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts (e)

At 31 December 2013, the Group had commitment
in respect of outstanding forward foreign currency
exchange contracts with a maximum aggregate
notional amounts of US dollar of 19,500,000,
52,000,000 and 4,650,000 against HK dollar, RMB
and Euro, respectively.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had commitment
in respect of outstanding forward foreign currency
exchange contracts with the maximum aggregate
notional amount of US dollar of 56,000,000.

EERE-ARERHEA

RZF—=F+ZA=+t—H" &
SERETABENZEREM
PRI 2 B AR B IR AR R AD
T

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T AT
37,794 34,754
39,701 45,263
1,247 2,613
78,742 82,630

RiEZEIBERRERNIAEESH A
BHE4,234,000 (T ——F
72 620,0007T) ©

B RAR
2013 2012
HK$"000 HK$'000
BT T AT
97 94

E=R5 LREFRN—REKB
BRTEELEARE  MAKE
PRI SRR 2 A B

SERBITHRIAINE S KR E
Ax%AE A9 519,500,000
52,000,000 K 4,650,000 JT £ 76
I AREREUT °

R-ZE——F+=-A=+—H0 ' &
EEARBITHRIINES LRIES
AL FE NS 556,000,000 °



(f) Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s contingent
liabilities relating to Mainland China land
appreciation tax amounted to approximately
HK$31,747,000 (2012: HK$30,800,000).

Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
acquired an additional 30% equity interest in Dor
Uluslararasi Tasimacilik Madencilik Ve Dis Ticaret Anonim
Sirketi (“"DOR"). The carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests in DOR on the date of acquisition
was approximately HK$1,555,000. The Group recognised
an increase in non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$1,555,000 and a decrease in equity attributable to
owners of the Group of approximately HK$1,555,000.

At 31 December 2013, the following assets were
pledged:

(@) Certain leasehold land, land use rights and
buildings with a net book amount of approximately
HK$91,619,000 (2012: HK$94,725,000);

(b) Certain motor vehicles with a net book amount of

approximately HK$679,000 (2012: HK$1,681,000);

(c) Certain investment properties of approximately
HK$985,086,000 (2012: HK$879,310,000);

(d) Certain short-term bank deposits of approximately
HK$22,657,000 (2012: HK$24,665,000); and

(e) Interest of shares in certain subsidiaries.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

(f) JREME

R-E—=F+-_A=+—H ' =&
EE AR E I ERN KRS
BA B 31,747,000 (Z 2 ——
£ @ 7#30,800,0007T) °

U BB M B X Rl FR SME R

HE-_ZT—=Ff+ZA=+—8H1L
F RN A& B YE T Dor Uluslararasi
Tasimacilik Madencilik Ve Dis Ticaret
Anonim Sirketi ([ DOR |) % 4)30% A% Z&
Rz o IMUEE B &R - DORKY)FE1Z I i
7= 2 WK T {E 4975 % 1,555,000 7T ° A&
] i 3R R 15 AR AR 2 < R TED B 45 AN 40 78
1,555,0007T R BB R AL EFE A2 E
R 4978 #51,555,0007T °

R-ZE—=%+—_A=+—H ' U TE&
ED T

(a) ZHEELH - THERERET
IR T F{E 4785 91,619,000t ( —
T — 4 : #¥94,725,0007T) :

(b)y =B /REEMEFELE®679,000
JTL(=—ZT— —4F : ##1,681,000
T0)

() ZpHIREYEL) BB 985,086,000
T (=% — - & : B &
879,310,0007T) :

d BHEHRERITERY BB
22,657,000 ( —ZFE ——4F : B
24,665,0007T) ; &

() HRMBARNREIEHS -



Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
material related party transactions for the year ended 31

December 2013:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B & B R M=

(a)

Related party transactions which were carried out
in the normal course of the Group’s business are as
follows:

Rental income received from [BELE AN
an associate A

Service income received from B U & A B IR 7S
associates A

Interest income received from
an associate

B U= 2R FE
WA

These related party transactions did not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

Compensation to key management personnel

Wages and salaries FeITE
Pension costs — defined

contribution plans st &l

Staff welfare BT

Employee share option benefits & 8 B AR R A

Corporate guarantees ©

Guarantees for general banking BEENRIIRITTRIE &
facilities and loan facilities granted EXmEEL ZER

to associates

In the opinion of the directors, no material liabilities
will arise from the above guarantees which arose in
the ordinary course of business and the fair value of
the corporate guarantees granted by the Group is
immaterial.

(b)

RN — FUE #ER

REE—RERGERTETZHE
ARZWN

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT AT
4,907 3,625
714 617

198 22

AR R B 52 P 3E 5 £ T AR Bl 3B 14A
B HERELIRSTERESH
BRPAFERERS -

TREEAEBMSE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
21,246 22,764
910 889
1,116 1,109
- 444
23,272 25,206

NRIFER

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T AT
11,160 22,420

E=R5 0 LREFRN—REKB
B TEELEARE  MAKE
PrEz i R RIER 2 A F BB
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Details of loan to a director of the Company, (d) IRIZEA TGP 161B 5 8 # 5
disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong NRIESERZFBTAT -

Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

Name of borrower YIN Mark
ERALH Fir
Position Executive Director
54V WITES

Terms of the loan
BENEFIE
—interest rate
—Filx
—security
—
—repayment term
—BRFH
—borrowing date

— {8 3A g

Balance of loan in respect of principal
ERAReEH

—at 31 December 2013
—-R=ZE—=F+=-A=+—H

—at 31 December 2012
—-R=ZE—=—F+=-RA=+—H

4% per annum
FEME
unsecured

AR

3 years

=%

25 April 2013
=FWA=+AH

HK$817,000
7B#817,0007T

Maximum balance outstanding during the year
F N K= R K

HK$980,000
/8 #980,0007T




Schedule of Properties held for Investment i EY)¥ —8 X

Address Lease Existing use  Group’s interest
b 31k HYESE RiTRAR SEER
537 Wenchang Road Central, Medium lease Commercial 69 %
Yangzhou, Jiangsu Province, HERAE A9 EES

China

BT #E

BN

X & BE5375R

2013 F3 HRIZERBRD A 163



Five Years’ Financial Summary 1 F 8§ E

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years are as follows:

Results
Turnover
Gross profit

Operating profit/(loss)

(Loss)/Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Assets and liabilities

Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity

geaN/ (BR)

(B1R)/BNRER :

ARFESHAA
IR

BERAR

FRBEE
nYEE

REE

FRBDARE
RBAE

BaE

s

AEEBERAMBFEZEE  BENMA

[CEUNNE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTR BT BETT BT BT
4,548,175 4,916,324 7,623,154 6,080,074 3,256,714
146,001 95,309 179,129 156,753 97,754
89,257 (7,013) 60,612 81,918 67,227
(3,667) (465,055) (304,687) 549,444 (4,646)
23,178 71,247 12,483 14,820 12,310
19,511 (457,808) (292,204) 564,264 7,664
1,804,955 1,671,482 2,021,916 1,908,966 1,206,860
1,568,815 1,733,207 2,022,876 2,502,844 1,891,420
3,373,770 3,404,689 4,044,792 4,411,810 3,098,280
456,839 455,695 415,136 550,719 398,352
1,074,724 1,206,017 1,363,063 1,599,825 1,111,877
1,531,563 1,661,712 1,778,199 2,150,544 1,510,229
1,842,207 1,742,977 2,266,593 2,261,266 1,588,051
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